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WITNESSES

JULY 29, 2OI4

MARIA PREDOMO FUENTE (LEVüIS)
By Ms. Fine
By The Court
By Mr. Lewis

WESLBY ALAN LEW]S
By Ms. Fine

AUGUST 5, 2O]-4

WARREN WHEATLEY
By Ms. Fine
By The Court
By Mr. Lewis

VüESLEY ALAN LEW]S
By Ms. Fine
By Mr. Lewis
By The Court

OLGA ANN LBI/ÍIS
By Mr. Lewis
By Ms. Fine
By The Court

MARIA PREDOMO FUENTE (LEW]S)
By Ms. Fine
By Mr. Lewj-s

*****

22, 133, t13
79
93

L34

181,257
226

232, 26r

270
299, 305
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327
329
334

339
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LAS VBGAS, NEVADA TUBSDAY, JULY 29, 201,4

PROCEEDINGS

(THE PROCBEDING BEGAN AT 13:5I223.)

THE COURT: This ís the Lewis matter, D-10-427054.

Counsel-/ your appearance.

MS. FINB: Good morning, Your Honor good afternoon,

Your Honor. Fran

plaintiff, Maria

Fine, Bar Ne. 25, present with the

Lewis Perdomo, now it's something efse.

THE PLATNTIFF: Fuente.

THE COURT: I have Wesley present, Wesley Lewis.

AII right. In your pre-evidentiary hearing, Ms.

Finer you stated that you're asking for some rel-ief because

Mr. Lewis failed to participate in discovery, is that right?

MS. FINE: Right, he did not, Judge.

In your Order Setting Evidentiary Hearing it is

s1l-ent tending Motion in Limine. However, it states that any

failure to fil-e and exchange the pretrial memo on the

designated date shal-1 resul-t in sanctions. Said sanctions may

incl-ude strj-king the complaint or ans\^¡eI oI counterclaim

vacating the trial date -- which we don't want -- or monetary

sanctions.

WesJ-ey failed, besides not responding to

interrogatories and requests for production, not timely

respondlng to request for admissions, not filing and

D-IO-427054-D LEüIIS O7 /29/14 TRANSCRIPT

EIGHTH JUDIC]AL DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DIVISION - TRÀNSCRIPT VIDEO SERVICES
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exchanging witness Iists and not del-ivering tabbed exhibits to

chambers and to Counsel-, to Serve and file a pretrial memo,

we're asking that his pJ-eadings be stricken, if aDY, as among

the listed sanctions, in essence, the taking of a defaul-t

against the offending party. And basically we're asking that

his request for admissions be deemed admitted.

THE COURT: Al-f right.

Vüe s 1eY

First l-et me s\^/ear both the parties in, please, Ms'

Boyle.

THE CLBRK: Pl-ease raise your right hands.

You do solemnJ_y swear the testimony you're about to

give in this actj-on shall be the truth, the whol-e truth and

nothing but the truth so hel-p you God?

MR. LEWIS: I do.

THE PLAINTIFF: I do.

THE COURT: Al-l- right.

So, Mr. Lewis, why dldn't you respond to any of Ms'

Fine' s discoverY requests?

MR. LEVüIS: If I coul-d address The court in a statement?

THE COURT: Yeah just, no. I just asked you a

question. why didn't you respond to any of the discovery

request s ?

MR. LEWIS: We did -- we did respond to the requests. vÙe

D-70-421054-D LEIÍrs 0'l /29/I4 TRANSCRIPT
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THE COURT: Vrihere's your copies of what you how you

responded?

MR. LEWIS: Woul-d it be the dì-scovery, correct?

I am -- I am -- I beg for The Court's mercy. I am

representing myseJ-f. f -- I -

THE COURT: Ms. Fine, did you get a copy of this

document?

MS. FINE: I'm so sorry if I did I didn't get it l-ike

that. I got some documents --

THE COURT: How did You

MS. FINE: -- f rom him.

THE COURT: -- how did You

MS. FINE: But not

THE COURT: -- how did you deliver that to Ms. Fine?

MR. LEVùIS: Mail-.

MS. FINE: Your Honor, I got some documents from him. l

did not get a package like that. r wish I had. If I had, I

would tell- you right off the bat. Let me

THE COURT: They're dated June 26Lh.

MS. FINE: And, Your Honor, they v/ere due they \¡iere

sent out. . .

A request for production was sent to him on May

281h. Our request for admissions were sent out on May 28th.
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THE COURT: So he woul-d have gotten t.hem in right under

the wire.

MS. FINE: But I don't

THE COURT: If in fact he mail-ed them to you.

MS. FINE: This is what I received, Judge. I received a

bunch of documents that \^iere foose and I received his response

and/or objection to Pl-aintiff's first request for admissions.

This is it. I got a bunch of loose documents, nothing

organized l-ike that. I wish I had, but I did not. And that

was received, Judge¡ oû July 24Lh, 20L4. Not on

THE COURT: OkaY.

MS. FINE: -- June 26Lh.

THE COURT: July 24th You received

MS. FINE: Yes, Judge, I can

THE COURT: -- something?

MS. FINE: -- show You.

THE COURT: Vühat did you receive on July 24Lh?

MS. FINE: His response to request fOr admissions, and

that was all, besides a bunch of documents that were just

loosely in a fol-der I mean, in an envelope. Nothing

organj-zed. But I certainly didn't receive anything on June

26th, Judge, because if I had, I would not lie to The court.

But this is what I received on

THE COURT: Okay. I don't need to see it.

D-IO_421054-D LEWTS 01 /29/LA TRANSCR]PT
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MS. FINE: July 24Lh.

THE COURT: It'd be, You know.

MS. FINB: The request for admissions. And if I could

See that document. so I coul-d see when it was mailed to me, and

if he has a proof, because he sent me receipts and al-l- sorts

of other things.

THE COURT: Do you have any proof of mailing, Mr. Lewis?

MR. LEWIS: Yes, we do. I am hard-pressed to be abl-e to

find it amongst my papelwork, but I can reproduce those if

needed.

THE COURT: And what is your proof of maiJ-ing?

MR. LEWIS: A receiPt.

THE COURT: What kind of receiPt?

MR. LEVÍIS : The U UPS .

THE MARSHAL: (f ndiscernibl-e ) in court .

MR. LEVüIS: It would be a receipt from the the mai]-ing

receipt, documentation for special-, Iike, first-class mail.

MS. FINE: Your Honor, I received some of these papers'

but they certainly weren't like this. And so I would ask that

we proceed, I guess, on and then give me the since we

have another hearing coming, we have another day, that I'd be

permitted to at l-east review this.

THE COURT: OkaY.

MS. FINE: But I need a copy of it, because I certainly

D-IO_421054-D LEWIS 01 /29/14 TRANSCRIPT
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don't have this.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. FINB: And some of these documents are famil-1ar just

because I

THE COURT: It m not making a coPY.

MS. F]NE: I've seen the emaifs from my cl-ient.

THE COURT: Um-hmm (in the affirmative).

MS. FINE: But my client hasn't seen these. So may \^/e

could get a copy? I'm so sorry.

THE COURT: WelI, I mean, that's l-ike fifty pages, isn't

ir?

MS. FINE: Vüell, then I'm happy to take it back to

THE COURT: Okay.

MS.

MR.

THE

MR.

FTNE: my office

Do you have anot.her coPY, WesJ-eY?

LEVIIS: Um

COURT: Do you have another copy of that?

LEVÍIS: I don't bel-ieve I have another copy on on

THE COURT: Vüel-l-, you're ordered to del-iver a copy

MR. LEVüIS: I I

THE COURT: to Ms. Fine excuse me, Mr. Lew j-s ?

MR. LEVüIS : I'm sorry.

THE COURT: You're ordered to del-iver a copy to Ms.

D-I}.421054-D LEWIS O7 /29/I4 TRANSCRIPT
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Fine's office by noon tomorrow.

MR. LEWIS: By noon tomorrow?

THB COURT: Yeah

MR. LBWIS: Okay.

THE COURT: by noon tomorrow.

MR. LBWIS: Yes, Your Honor

MS. FINB: But this doesn't have a recej-pt

THE COURT: Let's

MS. FINE: of copy on the back.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. FINE: It has no

THE COURT: All right

MS. FINE: points and authorities

THE COURT: Next onto the next

Ms. Fj-ne, he'I1 get you a copy by noon tomorrow or

none of those documents wil-l- be

MS. FINE: Some of them he did. I mean, I have seen some

of them. It m not going to Iie to You, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. FINE: Now if I coul-d have

THE COURT: You stil-I didn't file a pretrial. You stil-I

didn't fol-low any of my orders. You didn't file a pretrial

memorandum, did you?

MR. LEWIS: I have a list of everything that was

D-10-42-1054-D LElfrS 07 /29/r4 TRANSCRTPT
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that's been filed in in the court case. r had it printed

out.

THE COURT: Did you file a pretrial memorandum?

MR. LEWIS: I don't bel-ieve I fil-ed a pretrial

memorandum.

THE COURT: No, you didn't. I just went through

everything. f just read your motions, your oppositions, the

reply. I just went through everything. The Court order was

to fil-e a pretriaÌ memorandum so I knew what youl case was

about.

Ms. Fine, did you ever see this document he titled

-- Mr. Lewis titled Opposition to Notice of Entry of Order and

Order fil-ed 1/2/20I4?

MS. FINE: Yes, I received ít a few days ago. And when I

reviewed it, Judge, I couldn't make head nor tail of it. So

there were a lot documents that l¡/ere included with it.

Nothing was stapled, nothing was organized. I tried to read

it. I tried to understand it. I saw that there was an

interestingly, Judge, he's provided this discovery, but he did

not respond to the interrogatories and he didn't respond in

order IN an organized

What he did

fashion to the request for

production.

which is what

is give me a hodgepodge of documents

THE COURT: Okay.

that is.
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MS. FINE: A hodgepodge of documents, exhibits

THE COURT: Al-l- right.

MS. FINE: -- he says they're exhibits. Tt m going to

have to go through them, now that they're somewhat orqanized,

I guess, and see if they relate to his request for production

-- my request for production.

THE COURT: Have you received this document, handwritten,

entitled Motion to Decl-are Item or Material Obscene and Obtain

Injunction for Dismissal-?

MS. FINE: Again, I received something l-ike that, thaL's

what I received. But not an order, not attached, not stapJ-ed.

Just a bunch of documents that I coul-dn't that I went

through as best I could. And when I -- when he did maif us

responses to the request for admissions at the end of last

week it was a month late. In our pretrial memo we gave notice

to The Court about our desire f or al-l- of this.

It was nothing was in order and nothing was in

response to the organized discovery that we've asked for.

And I don't mean to be mean. I mean, I'm try -- I

really wanted to work with this and be abl-e to get through

this case quickly.

THE COURT: Vüel-l-, You don't have to I gave him two

days. Isn't it I'm not rushing anybody here.

The Opposition to Notice of Entry of Order¡ âs far

D-IO-421054-D LEW]S 01 /29/I4 TRANSCRIPT
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as The Court can tel-l, is a fugitive document. It wasn't

authorized. An opposition is either to is to a motion.

MR. LEIIIIS : This is

THE COURT: I --

MR. LEWIS: I'm sorrY.

THE COURT: Vühat. was your i-ntent filing this paper?

MR. LEWIS: In the filings of of what I have filed, I

believe that weJ-l, I know that I submitted things

incorrectJ-y. A motion has to be filed before or

declaration there there are procedures that I. . . am not a

lawyer. I but I am trying my best with my -- my family's

support to get everything filed.

T knew on July as earlY as

THB COURT: It m asking your what \^/as your intent with the

Opposition to Notice of Entry of Order?

MS. FfNE: Do you remember? I'm sorrY.

MR. LEWIS: My intent was to show -- my intent \,vas to

show a case.

THE COURT: Okay. The Opposition to Notice of Entry of

Order and Order filed 1/2/2004. The Court deems to loe a

fugitlve document and is stricken from t.he record. There/ s no

authorization for such document. Ilüe'd afready had motion

practice, motion opposition, and Ms. Fine filed a reply. I

had an order I had a hearing I I made some temporary orders

D-LO-421054_D LEWIS O1 /29/I4 TRANSCRIPT
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re custody and then set it on today for a chanqe of custody

and an order to show cause. That's a fugì-tive document.

AIt right. Ms. Fine, we' re going to proceed

Plaintiff's case on Motion for an Order to Change Custody.

Vüe'l-1 do the custody flrst, then we'fI do the Order to Show

cause. And...put on your proof. And if you finish before

five, we'lJ- continue j-t to the next day. And If 11 hear you

more on what if anything what sanctions you woufd ask The

Court for Mr. Lewis' faj-l-ure to participate. And then he can

put on his case if I Permit him to.

MS. FINE: And about the -- may I ask about the request

for admissions? Do I mean, I know that that would have to

go in my contempt part probabJ_y, but I did ask for a request

for admissions and they came on July 24Lh.

THE COURT: It m going to grant that relief, Mr. Lewis.

You know, this time frame you're not new to the

court. This is not the first time you're walking into court

You had a trial for custody, then there was an evldentiary

hearlng not too long ago. So you are not new to court at all.

And so

MR. LEWIS: If Your Honorable pJ-ease permit me to speak?

THE COURT: Wel-l¡ You didn't respond to Plaintiff's

request for discoverY right?

MR. LEWIS: I I was producing a a l-ot of material-.

D-70-427054-D LEWIS 01 /29/T4 TRANSCRIPT
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There v/ere other things that were being asked during these

past three months. I think the major -- most major issue that

f,ve had with producing the documents -- actual-Iy on JuIy 24Lh

is a date to be brought uP, is the day I had to go to the IRS

to cause in on June 1st my corporate office called me in

to inform me that the IRS was going to start to put a J-evy on

my wages due to the tax year of 20L0 -

I had to go to the IRS to even be able to produce my

tax returns for 2OI3 and that and a tax return that I filed

in 2OI2 v/as denied due to complications of someone else's

fiting.

THE COURT: OkaY. But

MR. LEWIS: And I have the documentation with me that I

THE COURT: Were r¡re

MR. LEWIS: of the daYs that

MS. FINE: What does that have to do

MR. LEWIS: I went there and

THE COURT: Al-l right.

MS. FINE: -- with the price of tea in China?

MR. LEVüIS: and the TRS' levY.

THE COURT: Al-I right. Your response to The Court's

question is not persuasi-ve on anything.

Ms. Fine compounded requests for admission to you on

D-IO-T2]O54.D LEIIIS 01 /29/I4 TRANSCRIPT
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or about May 28th, 2074. So you had the entire month of June

to respond to those requests. And you're teJ-ling me that's

some event in July. That's not really helpful

MR. LEVüIS: No, I -- i-n

THE COURT: -- to The Court.

MR. LBVùIS: on June lst I found out about the levy. T

had more it became a bigger caSe than just I had more on

my on on my shoulders, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yeah, but this is just sitting down for maybe

two hours and going through this and wrj-ting up a response to

l!IL.

MR. LEWIS: It

THE COURT: There were eighteen requests for admissÍons.

It wasn't a hundred, it wasn't even fifty or twenty-five,

eighteen. And you just didn't you just ignored it.

MR. LEVùIS: I hon honestly orr Your Honor, I did

not ignore anything. There \¡/ere there is a I've been in

court for a year-and-a-half I have been here. You're right.

I agree whol-eheartedlY.

THE COURT: Well-

MR. LEWIS: Vùith that comes paper\^/ork and it becomes over

mounting, it becomes

THE COURT: All- right. Plaintiff's request to admlt

what is it to deem the admíssions on admitted is granted.
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I think we have to read each one of these i-nto the

record, Ms. Fine?

MS. FINE: Fine.

THE COURT: I'Il- give you that pÌeasure.

You can have a seat, Mr. Lewis.

MS. FINE: Sometj-mes T think I'm being organized and I

put them in the very back of the notebook.

THE COURT: Do you have it sep do you have your

original request for admissions so I can

MS. FINE: I do.

THE COURT: -- mark those as letrs mark those as

Plaintiff's Exhibits then.

MS. FINE: Okay. I (indiscernible) one of my exhibits,

Judge.

THE COURT: Are theY? All right.

I think I/m getting ahead of myself.

MS. FINE: I think they are where is my exhibit book.

THE COURT: Al-I right. That's Pfaintiff's Exhibit L,

Plaintiff's first request for admissions that's admitted as

evidence today. Those admissions are deemed admitted because

of Defendant's faiÌure to respond to them in a timely fashlon

or even to communicate with Ms. Fine on the issue of an

extension.

MS. FINE: Admit so I go ahead?
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THE COURT: You know what? ft's an exhibit.

MS. FINE: Okay. Great.

THE COURT: I'm not going to admit each and everyone.

All right. Are you ready to cal-l- your f irst

witnes s ?

MR. LEWIS: Your Honor, if I

THE COURT: Yeah?

MR. LEVüIS: if I may?

On on June 21th I did or June 26Lh I did have

a moti-on or declaration to j-n support of order to extend mY

time to ans\,ver on June 2'lt-h.

MS. FINE: Yes, he did.

MR. LEVüIS : And I

THE COURT: And

MR. LEVüIS : I I knew I was behind the gun earlY on

to ans\^/er everything correctly

THE

MS.

THE

MS.

THE

MS.

COURT: Right. And The Court denied that.

All right. Your flrst witness, pJ-ease.

FINE: Mr. Lewis, Please.

COURT: Vüell-, you had said in Your

FINE: Okay.

COURT : -- (indiscernibl-e ) You had

FINE: Ms. Perdomo. Let me do Ms. Perdomo.

THE COURT: Yeah. You said you had the counselor, you

D-IO-421054-D LEWIS O1 /29/I4 TRANSCRIPT

E]GHTH.JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT - EAMII,Y DIVISION - TRÄNSCRIPT VIDEO SERVICES

60l N. Pecos Road, Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 (102], 455-4911

24

l8



I

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

ll

12

l3

t4

l5

t6

l7

18

t9

20

21

22

23

Said you had Someone from -- you said you had Someone from

Kumon Tutoring, you Said you had her teacher, You had Warren

Vüheatley

MS. FINE: And they' re al-l- coming because they none of

them were availabl-e today, but they're all- avail-able on the

next the next hearing date.

THE COURT: Al-l- right . OkaY.

MS. FINE: So should I call- Ms. Perdomo then we/fI cal-I

Mr. Lewis, if you/d 1ike. But I would only cal-I Mr. Lewis for

the Order to Show Cause and you want to do that l-ast?

THE COURT: Vüho's the other one, Mr. who?

MS. FINE: Mr. Vüheatl_ey and the teacher. The person f rom

Kumon w1l-l only testify as to how much was paid and who pald

it, and my cl-ient can testify to that.

THE COURT: I/m sorry, Ms. Fine. It m probabJ-y not being

clear . Who' s avail-abl-e todaY?

MS. FINE: Both the Parties.

THE COURT: Just the Parties?

MS. FINE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: AII- right. Go ahead.

Just put Your case on.

MS. FINE: Ms. Perdomo, if you'd take the stand, please.

THE PLAINTIFF: Sure.

THE COURT: You're ready s\^/orn in, so you can have a
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THB WITNBSS: Oh, I'm sorrY.

(Indiscernibl-e ) the exhibits .

MS. FINE: I' 1l- you sit down.

THE WITNESS: Oh, I'm sorry. I apologize

MS. FINE: And I will ask The Court if I can give her a

copy of the

Madam Clerk, can I give her a copy of the exhibits?

THE COURT: You just brought in one set?

MS. FINE: No, I brought in two.

THE COURT: Oh, okaY.

MS. FINE: Always two.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. EINE: And I already gave you a set, Mr. Lewis,

correct ?

MR. LEWIS: I belleve so.

MS. FINE: May I if Mr. Lewis' dad is going to

testify, then I do need to (indiscernibl-e) Exclusionary Rul-e

invoked.

THE COURT: Yeah, I'm not sure at this point if he's

going to.

But is there a possibility you're going to ask

anyone sitting in the courtroom to testify on your behalf' Mr

Lewis ?
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me

LEVTIIS: My parents are are the ones that have been

with me throughout thethe only ones that have been

LEVüIS: Both?

LEWIS' FATHER: (Indiscernibl-e. )

LEWIS: Both.

COURT: Okay. They'11 have to l-eave the courtroom.

MR. LEVüIS : OkaY.
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trial- and and know it's know it in it's entirety. I

f 'm would cal-l-, would one of them.

THE COURT: Okay. If they/re even possible witnesses,

Ms. Fine has invoked the Excl-usionary Rul-e, which means I have

to ask them to l-eave the courtroom because they mlght be

called to testify.

MR. LEWIS: Okay.

THE COURT: Okay? So Tfm sorry.

MR. LEVüIS: That's fine. (Indiscernibl-e.)

THE COURT: I know you want to be here to support

MS. FINE: But if only one of them is going to testify' I

mean

THE COURT: Wel-l-, are one or both of them possibl-e

witnesses ?

MR. LEVüf S : One .

MR. LEWIS/ FATHER: (Indiscernible. )

with

MR.

MR.

MR.

THE

I/m sorry.
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THB COURT: One of those pesky trial rules we have.

}IARIA PREDOMO EUENTE (LEWIS)

having been call-ed as a witness by the Plaintiff and being

first duJ-y sworn, testifies as fol-lows:

Ð(AIÚINATION

BY MS. FINE:

O Would you state your name for the record.

A Sure. Maria Perdomo.

O And your address, Ms. Perdomo?

A 595 South Green Valley Parkway, Apartment 923,

Henderson, Nevada , 89012.

O And Mr. Lewis, the defendant, is your ex-husband; is

that correct?

A Yes, that's correct.

O And the two of You have a daughter?

A Yes.

O !ùe've been through this, but just for foundation,

what is her name and birth date?

A Isabel-l-a Sara Lewis, and her birth date is August

1Oth , 2006.

O You and Vüesley were divorced when?

A The Decree was filed in July of 20II.

o At the time of your dj_vorce did you and wesley reach

agreement regarding Isabel-la's custody?
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A Yes.

O Vühat was that agreement?

A To have legaI, joint and physical- joint custody.

O Is Bell-a Isabell-a's nickname?

A Yes.

O Do you remember participating in an evidentlary

hearing 1n this case last Year?

A Yes.

O Do you remember The Court's various rulings from

that evidentiarY hearing?

À Vac

O Did you receive an order refl-ecting This Court's

written order refl-ecting This Court's rulings?

A Yes.

o At l_ast year's evidentiary hearing were you seeking

a change of custody?

A No.

O Vrlhat rel-j-ef were You seeking?

A I was seeking in terms of the decree, to j-n terms

of the decree to hotd Wesley's obllgations and to provide

tutoring for Isabell-a. Sorry, I was

O Vùhy would you not ask for a change of custody at

t.hat time?

A It wasn/t needed.
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O Vüoul-d it have been needed if he didn't comply?

A

ô

Vac

So...l-et's address the matter of Bella's tutoring

When and where did Bell-a begin receiving tutoring?

A She started tutoring with Ms. Flores in October'

2012. And

0 And then what?

and then I enrol-l-ed her in tutoring wj-th Kumon's

in March, 2013.

O Who arranged for Bell-a to begin tutoring?

.ô.

A r di-d

c)

A

A

tl

A

vlhy?

She was struggling in school-.

Did you tal-k to Vüesley about it?

Yes.

And when did was he supportive of the tutoring?

He knew about it. He thought she was fine and she

woul-d catch up herself .

O Did she catch uP bY herself?

No.

Vühen did last year's evidentiarY when did l-ast

year's evidentiary hearing concl-ude?

A October Bth, 2013.

O Did The Court in its rulings address the issue of
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Bel-Ia continuing to receive tutoring at Kumon?

Yes.

What was The Court's order regarding the payment of

A

a)

fees for Kumon for tutoring?

A That Vúesley had to pay November , 20L3, the two

hundred dollars. And then after December , 20L3, we woul-d

share the costs and by half . So he woul-d have to PaY a

hundred and I woul-d have to pay a hundred.

O As a resul-t of that ruJ-ing, did he pay the two

hundred dol-l-ars for November of 2013?

ANo

O And has he paid one hundred dol-lars per month as and

for half of Isabel-Ia's tutoring fee?

A No.

O Okay. Did I ask you what the monthly fee was?

A ft's two hundred doll-ars.

O Vlho has paid for Kumon each month?

A I have.

a And how do You PaY 1t?

A I have a credi-t card on file and it's charged

monthly for the sum of two hundred.

O And do you ask VûesJ-ey to contribute?

A Not directly. I just made the payments and I hope

that he woul-d go in and make his payments.
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O Directing your attention to what has been marked as

Pl-aintiff's Proposed Bxhibit 8, do you recognize this

document ?

A Yeah, these are

THE COURT: Wait.

MS. FINE: You have to say Yes

MR. LEWIS: Are we

MS. FINE: -- and then I have to say

THE I'ùITNESS: Yes.

MS. FINE: -- what is it.

MR. LEWIS: I'm sorry' Ms' Fine. Are we on

MS. FINE: Exhibit A, Yes.

MR. LEVüIS: Exhibit A.

MS. FINE: Then T gave you some more today.

MR. LEWIS : Yes, t.hank You.

BY MS. FINE:

O Okay. So you've seen that document?

Yes.A

a

A

U

A

ô

V{hat is it?

These are Kumon's monthly tuition payments.

Monthly tuition payments?

Um-hmm (in the affirmative)

Okay.

MS. FINE: And I woul-d move to admit that document if I
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coul-d.

THE COURT: Mr. Lewis, do you have any objection to I

coming in?

MR. LEWIS: The only objecti-on I have is that I was never

shown these documents prior to it being submitted. I was

never a these Kumont s a monthly statement has never been

submitted to my persons ever.

MS. FINE: Court's indulgence.

THE COURT: All- right. Let me see what Ms. Fine's

response is.

MS. FINB: If you look at my Motíon to Modify Custody' to

Enforce Order of December 21, 20l-3 and Award of Attorney's

Fees, dated March l-9th, 2004, it is right here. And unfor

THE COURT: Okay

MS. FINE: ftfs Exhibit 2

MR. LBWIS: March 19th, 2004?

MS. FINE: Yeah, it was the motion that we're here for

today. It's Exhibit 2

MR. LEWIS: But you this is for 2013, correct?

MS. FINE: (No audible resPonse. )

MR. LEWIS: The one that we're looking at?

UNIDENT]FIED SPEAKER: YCS.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Lewis, Ms. Fine j-s pointing out

that Exhibit B was attached as an exhibit to her motion that
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she filed that got us here today. So you have been given a

copy of it in a pleading.

MS. FINE: And

MR. LEVüIS: But not during the not during the moment

or letting me or tal-kíng to me about payment.

THE COURT: You got it in the motion, and you fifed an

opposition to her motion.

MR. LEWIS: I -- I underst I understand that, Your

Honor.

THB COURT: AII right. B is admitted.

(PLA]NTIFF'S EXHIBIT B ADM]TTBD. )

MS. FINE: Thank you.

May I admit exhiloit Proposed Exhibit 13, which is

the Motj-on to Modify Custody to Enforce Order of December 21Lh

and Award of AttorneY's Fees?

THE COURT: Mot j-on to Modify?

MS. FINE: Yeah, the one that we're here for today. May

I submit that, because it has al-l kinds of attachments and

exhibits that support this motion to show that he has received

these documents ahead of time.

THE COURT: Al-l- right. f 'm going to admit the motion.

It's a pteading. It's already on file. There's no surprise.

MS. FINE: It's ProPosed Exhibit 13.

MR. LEWIS: Was it something I received today? Just
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today, correct?

THE COURT: Exhibit 13, you were given the motion and you

to it on ApriJ- 24th, 201-4filed an opposition

MR. LEWIS: I'm

from her today. I'm

THE COURT: You

Exhibit 13, you received

MR. LEWTS: Just a copy of it?

THE COURT: the motion

FINB: And you received this .

LEWIS No, I understand.

and you filed an opposition to it.

I just received a copy.

Ms. Fine, don't.

COURT:

LEWIS:

COURT

LEVüIS: It wasn't

COURT: Ms. Fine, don't.

COURT: Go ahead, Ms. Fine.

FINE: Thank you.

COURT: I is admit.ted.

COURT: Thank you.

sorry, Your Honor. I just received 1t

Ifm wasnf t

didn't just receive it. The motion,

MS.

MR.

THE

MR.

THE

MR.

THE

MR.

THE

MS.

THE

THE

LEWIS: Ifm sorry. I' m sorry. I'm sorry.

BY MS. FINE:

O And you al-so paid Kumon since February of 2014?

A Yes.
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a And have you you paid February. What other

months ?

A I paid February, March, ApriJ-, Mây, all the way

through JuIy, 2014.

ñ^vÞ(-)

A I'm current.

MS. FINE: This is not part of the Order to Show Cause,

Judge. I guess/ T don't know if it is or not, it's just to

show arrears. So it's kind of they're kind of overlapping

BY MS. FINE:

O So out of that amount, how much was Vüesley to pay?

A He was to pay I paid eighteen hundred and he was

to pay a thousand.

O And that includes the two hundred doll-ars in

November that he was to PaY?

O Starting in December , 20L3, Wesley has not paid any

of it; is that correct?

A Yeah, that's correct'

O Has Bel-l-a continued with her tutoring each and every

month this year?

A Yes

A

ô

Yes.

Do you recafl The Court's order l-ast year as to how

long Bel-Ia's tutoring at Kumon would continue?
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A Yes.

O Vühat \,vas that ruJ-ì-ng?

A The ruJ-ing was that she the only way she could

finish with Kumon's is that she would be tested above her

grade level- t or if Vüesley and I agree that we woul-d end with

the tutoring.

O Has Bel-la tested at or above her grade level?

A No.

O Did The Court order Vüesley to do anything regarding

Bell-a's tutoring other than pay half of its costs?

A Vaq

O Vühat was that?

A He was to take her or he was ordered to take her

to Kumon's after school on Monday's.

t,

A

Vühy?

Because that was his days. He has Bel-la on Mondays
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on Mondays from nine a.m. to Thursdays at nine¡ so it's his

custodial- time to take her on Mondays

O That's been modified though temporarlJ-y; isn't that

true?

Vac

So what did he have temporarily?

He has Monday nine a.m. to Wednesday at six thirty.

P. M?

A

fl.

I24

3l



2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

ll

t2

13

I4

l5

l6

t7

l8

19

20

2l

22

z)

A P.M

O And has Bel-l-a only had tutoring on Mondays ?

A No, she al-so has tutoring on Thursdays.

O And what who arranged for her to attend

Thur sdays' tut oring ?

A r did.

O Since the Court ordered him to do sor has Vüesley

al-ways taken Bel-Ia to her tutoring on Monday afternoons?

A No.

a Directing your attention to what's been marked as

Pl-aintiff's Proposed Exhibj-t 5, and these are do you

recognize this proposed exhibit?

A Yes.

O And can you identify what is it?

A Yeah, this is an email- from me to Wesley asklng him

why Bella was absent from Kumon's on Monday, May 5th' 2014.

MS. FINE: And I would move to admit that exhibit.

BY MS. FINE:

O And does he have a response on that?

THE COURT: On May what date, May what?

THE WITNESS: May sth/ 2014.

THE COURT: May sth, 20L4.

BY MS. FINE:

O An email between you and Vlesley. And did he
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respond?

MR.

MS.

MR.

THE

MR.

THE

THE COURT: Al-l- right.

I dj-dn't admj.t 5 yet. Is there more

LEWIS: Where

FINE: No.

LEWIS: are we at?

COURT: Hang on a second.

LEWIS: I'm sorry. Irm sorry. I'm sorry.

Fine ?

COURT: As to Exhibit 5, is it ¡ust one emai-l-, Ms.

Oh, yeah, sorry.

Okay.

Sorry. He did respond, yes
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MS. FINE: No, it's severaf.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. FINE: It's from between

THE COURT: Are you still laying the foundation for the

rest of them?

MS. FINE: Yes

THE COURT: Okay. Go ahead.

THE VüITNESS: He did not res sorry (indiscernible)

just making sure, I mean. He did not respond to

BY MS. FINE:

O And then on May 2lsl

A

O

A24
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O And what dld he saY?

A He said that t.his \¡/as a special occasion, a daddy-

and-daw daddy-and-daughter roll-er skating event held on

Monday, May 5th

O And how did you l-earn that she was not at tutoring

on May 5th, if it wasn/ t hearsaY?

A Kumon's email-ed me and notif ied me and was asking

why she didn't go.

a Do you have to PaY 1f she doesn't go?

A No, they don't take an extra fee. But she will- miss

out she will- get behind.

O So what was Wesley's response besides the parent-

teacher f mean the daddy-daughter event?

A I mean, there's really no other response in that.

Itm sorry, I don't

O No. Okay. Let me ask You

understand the question.

so I woul-d move, since his response is in there

to admit it and then I'l-l ask Youand you did it, I would move

some more questions.

A

O

A Okay.

5

THE COURT: Al-I right.

So, Mr. Lewis, Ms. Fine is moving to admlt Exhibit

do you have any obj ection? Those are emails.
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MR. LEVüIS: The only objection I have is that I did send

it with a image, like .jpeg images that show me and Isabel-l-a's

activity during that day.

THB COURT: I' m asking you if you have any objection to

Exhibit 5 being admit.ted.

MR. LEWIS: I I guess the only thing I would object to

is that it's not admitted in 1ts entirety.

THE COURT: I don't know what that means.

MS. FINE: That means that the he

MR. LEWIS: The pictures aren't in there that I submitted

within the email, just just the words.

THE COURT: Did Mr. Lewis give you pictures of him rol-l-er

skating that \^¡ere part of the email-s?

THE VIITNESS: Yeah. On page four and five here, the

images. But for some reason they were unabl-e to open.

There's the downl-oad (j-ndicatitg) .

MS. FTNE: So

MR. LEWIS: They are Pictures of

THE COURT: Oh, these okay¡ so these littl-e

THE V\IITNESS: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- bÌocks that show images?

THE VüITNESS: Yeah.

THB COURT: And what were those images of?

THE WITNESS: It \^/as Bel-l-a skating with another of her
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f l-ier?

cl-assmate and there \,vas a fl-ier

MS. FINB: Okay.

THE VüITNESS of the event

BY MS. F]NE:

O And so that \das the picture?

A Vac

O The flier?

A It. I^/as the

O Is there a

flier

possibiJ-ity you couJ-d get a copy of that

THE COURT: I don't I just need her testimony. I

don/ t

MS. FINE: Okay. Vle1l, I was going to ask a question

about it.

THE VüTTNESS: Yeah, the fl-ier said that the event was

from six p.m. to nine p.m. And that's \^/hy it real-ly bothered

lner because Kumon's is open from two thirty aJ-1 t.he way to six

thirty. So he had enough time to take her to Kumon's.

I had birthday parties that I had to Isabel-la had

to attend and I always make Kumon's a priority. If she didn't

go to Kumon's she couldn/ t do these extra activities.

THE COURT: Okay. So one image \^/as her skating with

another child, another image was the flier, what was the third

image?
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THE WITNESS: I think it was the skating ring. There was

THE COURT: Okay. Al-1 right.

All right. So those images have been explored, Mr.

Lewis. Any other objection to 5 coming in?

MR. LEWIS: No.

THE COURT: Okay. 5 is admltted.

(PLAINTIFF' S PROPOSED EXHIBIT 5 ADMITTED. )

MS. FINE: Thank you, Judge.

BY MS. FINE:

O So did Wesl-ey provide you with any prior notice that

he was taking Bella rofler skating on May 5th rather than to

her tutoring?

A No.

O Has this Exhibit 5 concerned itsel-f with any other

tutoring lessons that Bella missed in May of 2014?

A She v/as al-so absent on yes -- Monday, May 19th.

O And when you emaifed VüesJ-ey about this absence, what

was his emaj-l- response, and is that part of Exhibit 5?

A He was concerned about the travel-ing time, because

O Vühat does it say? Could you quote it, what he says?

THE COURT: He can't she can't read from it. You

know, Ms. Fine
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MS. FINE: Oh

THE COURT: until- it's admi-tted there

THE COURT: I'm sorry

MR. LEVùIS : What

THE COURT: Is it in the

MR. LEVüIS : T'm sorry, what (indiscernibl-e ) ?

MS. FINE: It is admitted.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. FINE: You admitted it.

THE COURT: I'm sorry. Tt's in

Mr. Lewj-s, do not speak to The Court or to Ms. Fine

unfess it's your turn. Do you understand me?

MR . LBIIÍI S : Yes , I do, Your Honor .

THE COURT: Next time you do that I'm going to sanction

you two hundred dol-lars.

MR. LEWIS: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Alt right.

I'm sorry, Ms. Fine. I didn't read every email- in

here. Whj-ch page is it on?

MS. FINE: It's on the third page of the exhibit, May

22nd. Let's see f'm sorry.

THE COURT: That's the rol-ler skating part.

MS. FINE: Oh, Dor I'm sorry. It's part of Exhibit I

have to admj-t Exhibit 6 . It' s I apologi ze .
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THE COURT: Okay.

THE VÍITNESS : Sorry. Me, too. f \^¡as l-ike, I'm going

THE COURT: AI1 right.

MS . FINE: All- right.

BY MS. F]NE:

O Directing your attention to Exhibit 6, do you

recognize that document?

f\

O

fl'

Yes.

And can you tell us what that is?

Yeah, this is an email- when I asked VüesJ-ey about

this other d.y, the May 19th that she was absent, and thls

\¡/as his response to why Isabella did not attend.

O And in that email-, the first one's dated June 2nd.

Do you al,so, again, reiterate to him the summer hours?

A Yes. I I wanted to remind hlm of the hours and

OT WAS

that she woul_d still be attending to Kumon's during the

summer.

MS. FINE: T move to admit Exhibit 6.

THE COURT: AÌl- right, Mr' Lewis. Any objection to

Exhibit 6 coming in as evidence?

(PAUSE VüHILE DEFENDANT PERUSES DOCUMENT)

MR. LEVIIS: June 2nd was the l-ast day of school-

the last week of school. There was no more school to be
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intended.

THE COURT: Okay. That's not really a proper objection.

The objection is to the email-s themsel-ves.

MR. LEVüIS : There the email-s I have no objection to.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. LBVüIS: I mean

THE COURT: Emails

MR. LEWIS: I haven't read them in their entirety, but

my last email?

THE COURT: Exhibit 6 are admitted.

(PLAINTIFF' S PROPOSED EXH]BIT 6 ADM]TTED. )

MS. FINE: Thank you.

BY MS. F]NE:

O Pursuant to Exhibit 6, Wesley did not take Bel-la to

Kumon on Monday, May 19th; is that correct?

A

O

Yes.

When you emailed Vüesley about this absence, what was

his emall response?

A Okay. He was really concerned about his traveling

tlme, that he did not, since

O What does it sâY, what does the email- say?

MR. LEIIIIS : (Indiscernible )

BY MS. F]NE:

O He said, quote
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oh.

I email-ed you

I email- you I'm sorry I email you on Monday

morning after I picked up Isabel-l-a and left your pJ-ace. But

Isabel-l-a wasn't going to attends to Kumon's due to the

A

O

A

extensive travel

this is something

O Did he

time. Due to Twitchell- being off of school,

you already knew. Have a great morning.

email you on Monday morning?

recal-l- that he email-ed me after

After what?

After the Monday. Here it says Thursday, May 22nd.

He said he email-ed you on Monday. Did he email you

tel-l you that he wasn'ton Monday, May, whatever it was/ to

taking your daughter to Kumonf s?

Vac

Where is it? Show me?

May 19th. Monday

A

A

v

I I

A

A Oh, no. No.

from Wesley?

O

A

o

A

ô

the Monday

No. Sorry. Sorry, no. I aPologize.

Is this the sort of response you all- too often get

Yes .

Directing your attention to Pl-aintiff's Proposed
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that's al-so it the suÍrmer not directing your attention.

Back to Exhibit 6, do you recognize that in that you already

testified that you advised him about the summer hours?

Yes .

Did he agree did you agree that she wasn't going

to go in the summer?

A No, \^/e didn't. We agreed that we \^¡ere still going

to take her. She

O And does t.hat email- state that?

A (No audible resPonse. )

O Does that email- stated that

A

ô

A

t)

.É\

()

Yes.

you between you

Isabel-fa has not

( indiscernibl-e )

is that your email- or his?

That's my email

And did he respond?

to him.

No, not of this email-, he did not.
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A progressed and she must attend on Mondays and

Thursdays during the open hours.

O And did you

A Between

tt

fl

a)

¡\
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O Has Vüesley taken Bella to all of the Monday tutoring

to all of the Monday tutoring lessons at Kumon this summer?

A

{)

fl'

,H.

u

(l

¡\

A

No.

Has he missed what days has he missed?

All of them.

He hasn't taken her to one

She's been absent.

since school's been out?

Has he advised you why?

No.

Did he notify Kumon?

No.

How do you know that she's not been

Isabella, she tol-d me and the staff

at tutoring?

that her dad was

not going to take her to Kumon's anymore.

O Okay. And you confirmed this at Kumon's?

A Yes.

O Vlhat is the resul-t of her not going to her tutoring

on Mondays?

A ft's really frustrating, because now -- the way

tutoring work the tutoring works, it has to be two days,

because they split the work to keep t.he consistency. And now

whatever she missed on Monday gets piled up into my days. And

so I have to overl-oad her with this work and she gets
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frustrated. Be instead of going two books a day, sometimes

I have to break it apart into, You know, four four books'

and I have to dlvide two at night and two in the morning.

Sometimes I think it's a littl-e bit too much for her.

You know, I al-ways encouraged her to do it, but it's

it's extremel-y frustrating, because she's only seven and

she has to do all- this work. They can't be separated

throughout the whole week. And so I think it/ s building up

frustration on her to get it done because it has to be during

my days on1y.

O And how many workbooks do you have to do with her

each week 1f he doesn't take her to Kumon's?

A It wil-l- becomes eight. and ten books.

O And are

A And these

these the books?

I bought the book I bought some of the books

that we've done together. I woul-d l-ike to See them. They're

about five pages each book, back and for back and front

and back.

O How many books has VüesJ-ey done with her?

A To my knowledge, every time I l-ook at the the

case at Kumon/s, I don't see the work being done. Most of the

time the book is Ìeft undone. So then we just, You know,

ô

fL
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Scott disregarded the book and we just focus on my package'

so.

a So this decision not to go to Kumon's \^/as

unilateral, you wanted her to continue tutoring; is that

correct

A That's correct.

for the summer?

So it's the end of the year now. Can Bel-l-a go into

the second grade?

Yes.

And we The Court wil-t recal-l- that she v/as held

back the first. grade.

A Yeah, she had to repeat first grade.

A Is she getting straight A's, is that

A She started with straight Af s.

O When?

A The first tri trimesLer first semester, so I

(indiscernibl-e ) --

O Last August?

A The last August. And then al-l of a sudden we saw a

decline in her grades, they went from A's to B's. And as it

got a little bit harder for her, she just kept steady B's. so

I'm definiteJ-y concerned about second grade, that's why I

wanted to make sure that she did Kumon's.

a)

¡\

ô

D-'],0-421054-D LEWIS O1 /29/I4 TRANSCRIPT

E]GHTH,]UDICIAL DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DIVISION - TRANSCRIPT VIDEO SERVICES

601 N. Pecos Road, Las Vegas/ Nevada 89101 1102|, 455-4911

24

45



2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

ll

t2

13

t4

15

l6

l7

l8

I9

20

21

22

z3

Also, if we l-ook at the report card, Mrs. Burgess

said we have to help her with time management. f sabel-l-a is

unabl-e to sit down and do her homework. She fidgets' she

Iooks around. It's because she doesn/ t have that consistency.

MS. FTNE: So I have a bunch of questions that have to do

with chil-d support and arrears and the Order to Show Cause.

So I'm going to not go through that now.

THE COURT: Well-, do you know what? As long as you're

prepped for it, go ahead and go through those questions.

MS. FINE: ReallY fast.

BY MS. F]NE:

O Let's go back to last year's evidentiary hearing and

The Court's orders that were issued from it.

Did The Court order Wesley to pay you current child

support ?

O In what amount?

A At eJ-ghty-one do1lars starting

O A month?

A October

Yeah, a month, starting October, 20I3r so.

O Did you receive any current child support from

WesJ-ey in October of 2013?

A Yes

A No.
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O The order specifical-Iy pay 1t in 2013?

A Yes.

O October?

A (No audible response. )

O Did you receive any current child support from

Wesley in November of 2073?

A No.

O Did you receive any current child support from

Wesley in December of 20L3?

A No.

a Did you receive any current child support from

Vüesley in January of 20L4?

A No.

O After the evidentiary hearing, did The Court order

Wesley to pay you an amount as his share of the cost of health

insurance for Bel-la?

A Yes.

O What was he ordered to PaY?

A Fifty dol-l-ars.

O He was ordered to pay you fifty dollars per month?

A Yes, per month.

O And you pay a hundred dol-l-ars per month for heal-th

insurance for your daughter?

A That's correct.
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O Did you receive any payment for health insurance in

October, 201,3?

A No.

O How about November, 2013?

A No.

O How about December of 20t3?

A No.

O January of 2013 (sic) ?

A No.

O Do you recall- whether at the concl-usion of l-ast

year's evidentiary hearing The Court found that Vùesley owed

you chitd support arrears?

A

ô

^

-8.

O

Yes.

What \,,/as The Court's ruling on that issue?

That he had to pay a hundred dollars

No.

No. Sorry.

Vühat was the total arrears the Judge found

approximately, if You remember?

VrIas 1t f ourteen

No.

Nine thousand?

No. It was

It was nearly nine thousand dollars.
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O It \¡/as approximately nine thousand.

Nine thousand without

The

excl-uding penal-ties and

Interest.

Tnterest

Look at the order, you'11 which you can't do

ft

v

¡\

\l

A

because you don't have it, but the Judge does.

MS. FINE: Judge, I have to apologize to you. I found

his discovery that. he sent, but it wasn't responsive to the

interrogatories and it wasn't responsive to the requesL for

production. It \^/as just a bunch of documents that were in the

same order. I just

THE COURT: Just things he wanted you to have?

MS. FINE: He wanted me to have. But I have no idea what

they are.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. FINE: And so I went through some of them and I did

pulJ- some of them out.

THE

MS.

THE

MS.

THE

COURT:

F]NE:

COURT:

FINE:

COURT:

All- right.

So I apologize.

Al-l right . Thank you.

I real-ly do apologize.

I appreciate your disclosure, Ms. Fine.
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THE COURT: So you don't have to bring them to me

I just want to find the order.

I'd ask The Court to take judicial notice. It was

approximately oh, here it is.

THE COURT: Vühich order are you looking for? The one for

MS. FINE: The findings of facts, conclusions of faw.

THE COURT: Right.

MS. FINE: And your written notice of entry.

You indic you found that there v,/as approximately

nine thousand

Let me find the order, it's

THE COURT: I f ound nine thousand twelve dol-l-ars and

thirty-eiqht cents through August of 2013.

MS. FINE: Correct.

THE COURT: The chil-d support arrears

BY MS. FINE:

O And that nine thousand twel-ve thirty-eight through

August, which woul-d mean that so it's approximateJ-y ni-ne

thousand twelve dolfars through August, and then we had

September and October that were added on. But I bel-ieve that

your chitd support

A

O

(Indiscernibl-e. )

of ninety-one started in October of 2073,
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correct? Okay.

A Correct.

a So going back to that. Not counting the interest

and penalties, was VlesJ-ey ordered to make any payments to you

on those arrears?

A Yes.

O And do you remember how much he was supposed to pay

you on those arrears?

A A hundred dollars a month.

O Did you receive any arrears payment from Vüesley 1n

October of 20L3?

A

A

r^)

A

O

f1

I

No.

November of 201,3?

No.

December of 20L3?

No

January of 20L4?

No.

When did you take The Court's order to FamiJ-y

Support as \,vas ordered as you were instructed to do in the

Findings of Fact?

A As soon as I received them I took them over.

O Was that in December of 2013?

A It was in December, y€s.
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O Do you know how the process works over at Family

Support ?

A What I did is I submitted the order to the

receptionist. And then she takes it in, she stamps it, and

then they audit and then they make the changes. And then once

that goes through, what they did is they took the wages off

his paycheck.

O okay.

A

O

I

¡ì

v

f1

So a month

And when did that start?

That started FebruarY, 2013.

So are you aware of the new audit?

Yes

And were you abl-e to get a coPY of it?

Yes.

Vùere you abl-e to get a copy of it' when were you

finally abl-e to get a coPY of it?

Today.

Just today?

At twel-ve.

And do you know what the arrears are stated on the

new audit?

A

o

A

A Fourteen, the ne\^/ arrears

O Does that inc.l-ude the contemPt?
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A Yes, it

OSo

yeah, because they al-l- added up, so it's

probably up to nine thousand

O Don't quess.

A I don't know

A to be honest with You. f'm sorry.

O if I can refresh

MS. FINE: Can I refresh her memory' Your Honor?

THE WITNESS: YCS.

THE COURT: Five hundred six, right?

MS. FINE: Yes .

THE COURT: Ms. BoYJ-e?

THE CLERK: It m sorry?

THE COURT: I admitted 6, right?

THE CLERK: You did' Yes.

THE COURT: Are you J-ooking at Exhibit 4, Ms. Fine?

MS. FINE: No. Exhibit 4 is a pay stub to show that he

provided to show what he Paid.

THE COURT: OkaY.

MS. FINE: It's from him.

THE COURT: AII right. So you want to refresh your

witness' memory, 90 right ahead.

MS. FINE: Just with the payment record that she

THE COURT: Um-hmm (in the affirmative).
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MS. FINE: picked up today, if I might?

THE COURT: Yes.

BY MS. FINE:

THE

u

A

A

Is it on here?

On the l-ast page? (Indiscernibl-e. )

(Indiscernible) not this week. T mean like no!ù.

I might have it.

Fourteen thousand five hundred and thirty-five

and thirty-five cents.

COURT: Say it again.

Fourteen thousand --

And contempt.

Vfhich was fifty-five hundred?

(Indiscernibl-e. )
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doll-ars

THE WITNESS: Fourteen thousand five hundred and thirty-

five wlth thirty-flve cents.

THB COURT: Which incl-udes child support arrears?

MS. FINE: And the

THE VIITNESS : Yes.

BY MS. FINE:

a And contemPt?

A

(2

A

THE COURT: Al-I right.

MS. FINE: So it woul-d be fourteen five thirty-five point

thirty-five minus fifty-five hundred.24
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THE COURT: Through what date, pÌease?

MS. FINE: Through today.

THE COURT: Do you know what, Ms. Fine? We need to mark

that as an exhibit even though you're just using it to refresh

her memory.

MS. FINE: It. al-so has penalties and interest accrued on

it, and I need to get a copy of this to Mr. it's onJ-y four

pages. Coufd I get a copy of it?

THE COURT: Yeah.

Mr. Hooper, can we make a copy and then I want a

copy marked, pJ-ease?

MS. FINE: f'm sorry, marshal.

THE MARSHAL: (Indiscernibl-e. )

BY MS. FINE:

O So do you I don't know if I've asked this, did

you receive any payments on those arrears?

No.

VÍe1Ì, after February of

After

20r4

yes.

you did, correct?

Yes.

But I'm sorry in October in 20L3 did you
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receive that hundred dol-l-ar payment?

A October of 2013, ûo

O November?

A November, flo.

O December?

No.

January?

No.

Starting in February, You started receiving it,

Yes .

of

Did the Findings of Fact, ConcJ-usions of Law and

Entry of Order writt.en and written order, to

of your recol-l-ection, state that even if The Courtthe best

fl

ô

A

O

correct ?

Notice

A

ô

the Family Support Court had not yet automated those payments

he was to pay t.hem?

A Yes.

O When you didn't recei-ve any of these ordered

payments what did You do?

A I called you and notifY You.

O Vühat did we do

And then

if you remember?

we ra we wrote a demanding letter or
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A

O

A

u

A

ô

A

ô

fl

O

A

Did you receive any money from him then?

UÍì, no.

VüeI1

We sorryf f can't recall.

You don't recal-l?

(No audibl-e response. )

Just say you don't recal-l- if you don't recal-l-

okay

A Sorry

MS. FINE: So this is no\^/ 15, Judge' Exhibit 15?

THE COURT: Yes, Exhibit 15. It's just marked because

you just got it today, marked for refreshment. Vloul-d it

refresh the recol-l-ection.

BY MS. F]NE:

O Directing your attention to what has been marked at

Exhibit 4, had you ever seen that document before?

It' s

Yes.

Did you receive it from VlesIeY?

Yes.

And it is can you identify it?

Yeah, it's the payment record for the child support

enforcement.

O And what does it show his first payment was to you?

A First payment
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O After the evidentiary hearing, I'm sorry.

It \^ias on February 26Lh, 2014, for fifty dollars.

And what was the next one?

February 26Lh, 2014, of a hundred and fifty dollars.

A

a\

A

THE COURT: Are you moving to admit

MS. FINE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT Exhi-bit 4?

Mr. Lewis, do you have any objection to 4 coming in?

MR. LEVÍIS: No, I do not.

THE COURT: Okay. 4 j-s admitted.

(PLATNTTFF/S PROPOSED BXHIBTT 4 ADMITTBD.)

BY MS. FINE:

O Directing your attention to Proposed Exhibit 10' do

you recognize this document?

(2

A

tt

-H.

Yes.

Vühat is it ?

This is my Financial- Disclosure Form

Dated what?

JuJ-y 22nd, 20L4.

MS. FINE: I move to admit, unless This Court wants to

take judicial notice of it. I just want to make it easy for

The Court.

THE COURT: Okay. I' m sorry. I was l-ooking at your 4

What are you J-ooking at now?
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MS.

THE

MR.

THE

MR.

THE

FINE: Her Financial Discl-osure Form, Exhibit 10.

COURT: Okay.

Mr. Lewis, âny objection to 1-0 coming in?

LEVIIS: (No audible resPonse. )

COURT: It's al-ready a filed document.

LEVùIS: I understand. No, I have no probJ-ems.

COURT: It's admitted.

Yes.

Vùhat is it ?

This is an email that I wrote to Wesley in regards

(PLATNTTFF',S PROPOSED EXHTBTT 1-0 ADMTTTED. )

MS. FINE: Thank you.

BY MS. FINE:

O Now leaving aside the issue of VüesJ-ey's fail-ure to

compJ-y with The Court's financial- orders, have there been

continui-ng probJ-ems with him in terms of co-parenting Bella?

A Yes.

O Do you consider his fail-ure to take BeIIa to Kumon's

A Yes.

O Directing your attention to what has been marked as

Pl-aintiff's Proposed Exhibit 9, do you recognize this

document ?

problem?a

A

I

A

to Isabel-l-a's cell- phone usage.
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O What \^/as the topic of that email, besides, what was

the substantive issue?

A I was extremely concerned because Tsabella \^/as not

able to use the phone, even though I provide it for her.

WesÌey was turning off turning off the phone, not charging

it or putting it on silentr so she was not able to communicate

with me through the cel-1 Phone.

O Did he respond, y€s or no?

A No.

MS. FINE: I move to admit Exhibit 9 .

THE COURT: Any objection, Mr. Lewis?

MR. LEWIS: I -- are we on 9? I'm sorry. 9 --

THE COURT z 9

MR. LEVIIS: Wel-Ì, I will bring notice to the very end of

9 stating how she is when she responds to me in these email-s.

It says I witl- be picklng up Isabel-Ia in about twenty minutes,

so please, there's no need for you to make a call me after you

receive this email-.

THE COURT: See okay. As to the emails themselves, do

you have any objection to then being admitted?

MR. LEVüIS: They can be admitted. I don't agree with

what is stated in them.

THE COURT: Al-1 right. The email-s are admitted.

(PLATNTTFF',S PROPOSED EXHTBTT 9 ADMTTTED.)
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BY MS. FINE:

A Vühen Bell-a is with you does she speak to her dad?

A Yes.

O How regularly?

A They text pretty frequently, everyday, saY¡ or every

other day, depending how busy we are with the weekend. But

she checks her phone a l-ot.

O And when you're when she's with her dad, does she

text you?

A Barely. ft's l-ike a miracl-e if she texts me. Like

she does not, you can just telÌ, she disconnects compJ-etely

f rom the cel-f phone.

O And are you accusing Vùesley of hiding the phone or

not charging it?

A Vùel-l-, when f 've talked to Isabel-Ia about it, she

says that he takes the phone from her

O So have there been any other issues with respect to

co-parenting recentJ-y?

A Yes.

O Let me direct your attention to Exhibit 7. Do you

recognize that document?

A It's a yes¡ I recognize it.

O Vühat is it? And just tell- me what it is, don't

describe it. Just tell me what it is.
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A A dentist appointment that. Wesley made for Isabella

It's an email

MS. FINE: I woul-d move to admit Exhibit 7

THE COURT: It's 1

Mr. Lewis, any objection to 1?

MR. LEWIS: No objection

THE COURT: 7 is admitted.

(PLATNTIFF' S PROPOSED EXHTBTT 7 ADMTTTED. )

BY MS. FINB:

a Has he ever made an appointment for Bel-l-a in the

past ?

A No.

O Has he ever made a dental- appointment for Bel-l-a in

the past?

A No.

O So in this email- he tells You what does he tell

you?

A That he's inviting me to attend at a dental

appointment that he made for Isabella for a teeth cJ-eaning

O AIl right.

A and he sent it the day before at seven twenty-

five p.m. on a Sunday. And the appointment \^¡as for the next

day at nine forty.

O Okay.
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A However, he's did include

O In that email does he tel-l- you t.he name of the

dent i st ?

No. There's

Does he tell you the address?

No.

He invited you, correct?

Yes.

Aside from the fact that he's informing just the

No.

Have you received anything from the insurance

company confirming she went to the dentist?

evening before this appointment at nine forty â.fl., were there

any other probJ-ems with this notification?

A Yeahr ûo address. No how can f attend if there's

no contact information?

O Did you receive a response from him when you asked

him?

A

ô

A

a

A

a)

A

I

ANO

O Vlas there a time when Bel-l-a was receiving coun

Oh, fet me ask you this. So this \^¡as after our

motion was filed, correct?

Correct.

So okay.
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Was there a time when Bel-l-a was receiving counseJ-ing

at Oasis CounseJ-ing?

A Yes.

O Can you teIJ- The

A fsabell-a was

biting her cl-assmates and

misbehaving. She was also

v/as going through a phase

Court why?

\^/as extremely aggressive and she was

f ighting in school-. She was

not motivated. She didn't she

where she didn't want to do

to see her

anything.

coufdn't

She seemed depressed, she seemed sad. And I

realIy get her excited about. anything.

We noticed a change in cl-ass (indiscernibl-e) . She

foves to read. Bel-l-a l-oves readlng. And normal-1y she l-ikes

to share the books in class. Ms. Burgess noticed it, too.

There was like no interest in anything. Tsabel-l-a was just

grey and sad.

O So what did you do?

ATÃI

O Did you call- VüesJ-eY?

A Yeah, I l-et him know and we went to

pediatrician and he referred us to Warren Wheatley

O So in our Motion to Modify, that's been admitted'

which is Exhibit 13, is there anything in there from Oasis?

A (Searching through documents. )

O There are photographs in there. Have you found
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those photographs of your daughter?

Huh-uh (in the negative).

It's Bxhibit '7, the Oasis Counseling.

Oh, I thought it \^/as 13.

Exhibit I of 13, dear.

oh.

Exhibit 7 of 13.

A

o

A

l)

A

O

MR. LEWIS: Exhibit I of 13.

THE WITNESS: 7 of 13.

BY MS. FINE:

O So we have Exhibit 13, that's the underlyJ-ng motion

for why we're here today. But at.tached to Exhibit 13 is

Exhibit 'l , which is the l-etter from the Oasis Counseling.

A (No audible response. )

O Do you see that?

MR. LEVüIS: Dated February?

MS. FINE: Yes, FebruarY 19th, 20L4.

May I assist her, Please?

THE COURT: Yes.

(MS. F]NE ASSISTS i/IITNESS. )

MS. FINE: This is Exhibit 7

BY MS. F]NE

O Attached to Exhibit 7 from Mr. Vüheatley are some

photographs, I beJ-ieve, some pictures?
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O And those were her pictures that she presented; is

that correct?

A Yes

A

O

A

That' s

That she drew?

Yes, that's correct.

So in that letter Mr. Vüheatley is testif ying at

our next hearing; is that correct?

A That's correct.

O And Mr. Wheatl-ey can bring this document in

additionally, al_so. But is she st j-I] how J-ong did she go

to counseling?

A She went to counseling since September, 2013 -

o And when you told vüesley about the probfems that you

were observing, how did he react?

A His response was that he didn't think anything was

wrong with IsabeJ-la, that whatever whatever T expressed to

him that she was doing, she wasn't doing that with him, that

she \^/as probabJ-y misbehaving due to my parenting skiII, J-ike

it was my fault that why she was acting like that.

O So you found someone at Oasis Counseling and the

person's name is Vùarren VüheatIeY?

A Vüarren WheatleY, Yes.

O And what was your understanding of Bel-l-a's condition
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then?

A She \^/as dì-agnosed with depression and anxj-ety.

O And how often were the schedul-ed appoj-ntments to

help Bel-la?

A He scheduled her weekJ-y and we went every Saturday.

O Did Bel-ta appear comf ortabl-e with Mr. Wheatley?

A Yeah, they actually had a connection. They bonded

very quickly.

O Was your invofvement requested by the therapist?

A

A

Yes.

In what way?

To assess Vüarren had different questions and

about like her habits at home and also if any there/ s

anything that Isabell-a needed to share with me, she had any

feelings towards me that we needed to resol-ve, then I was to

be there present in theraPY.

So sometimes he woul-d invite me to the therapy when

I needed to hear Isabel-l-a's feelings or if something real-ly

bothered her, he made sure that I was there so I would

acknowÌedge her and resol-ve those issues

O Did she have issues, do You know do you know

whether or not there were issues with WesJ-ey and whether or

not Wesley particiPated as weff?

A Yes, there were issues with VüesJ-ey, but he never

D-LO_421054_D LEWIS O1 /29/T4 TRANSCRIPT

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DIVISION - TB.ANSCRIPT VIDEO SERVICES

60l N. Pecos Road, Las Vegas' Nevada 89101 1702) 455-491'7

24

67



I

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1l

t2

13

t4

l5

T6

t7

18

19

20

2t

22

23

attended to therapy.

O How do you know?

A Isabella share, You know, her sad feelings for the

divorce. That \^/as obviously something that was affecting her.

But because we weren't together, she fel-t that separatj-on.

She expressed that in theraPY.

O But what did Mr. Lewis do? Did he attempt to work

with Mr. Vùheatley at al-l-?

A I know he missed his appointment at the beginning

and he wanted to get it rescheduled. And I gave him the

the contact information for him, because you can't just he

can, t just call_ me and -- it would just. be it would just

get too complicated. So I wanted him to call- and tal-k

directJ-y. He never attended until- the end, after he was

served. And

O With this motion?

A Yeah.

O So you don't know whether or not he ever met with

the counsefor?

A No. I wasn't Present or invited.

O Okay. Was there any out-of-pocket expense for you

associated with BeIIa's counseJ-ing?

A Yes.

O Vüas Wesley made aware of that fact?
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O How and when if you know?

A It was by email, when I sent al-I that contact

information, where \^/as it, who information history about

l-ittl-e biography about Vüarren and al-l- that, it was incl,uded in

there that the therapy was a hundred dollars.

O And how did he react?

A Yes

A

O

A

O

A

He didn't respond.

During the course of Bella's counseJ-ing, did you

observe improvement in her?

Yes.

Can you te1I us in what way?

Vühen she was abl-e to tap into her feelings and

express them, she kind of like lib it was l-ike something

l-ifted off her shoulders and she became herself again. She

WAS reading again. She became interested in gymnastics again.

So it it seemed l-ike she just fel-t l-ike her

bookshelf was empty. It was seemed l-ike all these feelings

\^/ef e taking her down. And for it kind of like liberated

her and it gave Warren gave her skil-ls to deal- with those

feeJ-ings.

And it was also helpful for me as wel-l because then

I coutd assist her at home, and to understand a different

perspective from her, because she's so tiny. You know, she's
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noL going to sit there and give you a fuII conversation of our

feelings. But there's certaj-n things that we v/ere abl-e to

notice to hetp her at home as wel-l- and continue the therapy.

O Okay. TeIl me what those are?

A We were supposed to play games with her. There was

a game where \^/e asked her certain things that she l-iked and

what she was interested in. And so she had to tal-k tal- k

about her Ìikes. And that was reaIly neat, because then I got

!^L(J to know her in a different l-evel- as her o\^rn person and

identity. So she became more confident about hersel-f and she

became more vocal- about what she wanted.

O How much have you spent on Mr. Vüheatley so far?

A I spent a total- of two thousand doll-ars.

O Do you have proof of that?

A Yes.

O fs Mr. Wheatley going to be bringing that as well?

A Yes, he wil-l- be bri-nging those.

O So we'l-l get that admitted through him.

When you filed your motion on March 19th, 20L4, you

aJ-J-eged that Vües1ey had been neglecting BeJ-1a's medicaf needs.

Can you provide This Court with some details regarding those

matters ?

A Yeah. Isabell-a first had a case of eczema on her

skin. Her skin became really dry, itchy, bumpy, leatherly
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And

O

A

I

f1

I

Leatherly?

f don't

Leather-l-ike ?

Leather-l-ike. Sorry. Leather-like.

I liked leatherly. It's a new word.

Me and my husband.

Did you call Wes1ey?

Yes, he I¡/as notified. Because al-so the doctor gave
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A It doesn't feel- good though. It's very painful.

And so when I picked her up on Thursdays at school

she woul-d be scratching. So I knew this was affecting her at

school. That was one of the reasons why she couldn't maintaÍn

-- maintain seated at her seat and she would, you know, be al-l-

over the place. Because it's you can't sit still. And

especially like if you have certain type of fabrics that might

irritate vou, that makes it worse ' And

O So did you Provide cream for her?

A Vùe took her to the doctor because it was that

seraous.

O Whose we?

A

A

a specific directions 1n fact '

Iehim emaif him all the information and what he24
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shoul-d do. All the instructions \^lere there. And, in fact, I

gave him some l-inks to different websites letting him know

that this hlas not going to go away, that it's onJ-y

preventable. And so we would have to deal- with this probably,

you know, for a J-ong time

O Did you

for the rest of her life.

include those documents in the motion that we

Yes.

And

THE COURT: It m sorry. I might have missed this

(indiscernibl-e) minute here making my notes. You notified Dad

about the doctor's appointment about her skin?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Did he go?

THE WITNESS: HC nor he didn't.

THE COURT: Okay.

BY MS. FINE:

O Did you provide him with the prescription that the

doctor gave you?

Yeah.

And what was that prescriPtion?

It \^/as Amox Do, it was hard Hydroxic

A

\l

f i l-ed?

^

o

A

A
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Hydroxicone (phonetj-c) ?

O It \^/as a cream?

A It \^/as a creamf yeah.

O And so did you provide the cream to Wesley?

A Yeah. In fact I got two bottl-es. And I bought for

Dad and I put it in her backpack, and when I saw him I made

sure that he knew that it was in the bag.

A Vühen was

A And also the nurses knew at school that I was

because you have to notify 1f you're going to send some type

of medication¡ so.

O So has Bella's eczema continued to be a problem or

is it better now?

A No, it's stil-l continued to be a probJ-em.

a Does do you know for sure whY?

A Yeah. Throughout the suÍìmer she's been going at

Wet'n'Wild with Dad. He bought a season pass, which is great,

she's having a l-ot of fun. But the chlorine, if you stay in

the water too long it wil-l-, You know, create that reaction

again. And if you don't appJ-y the lotion right av/ay' it just

keeps getting worse and worse and worse.

So when I asked Isabel-l-a because I'm al-so trying

to make her responsible

a Responsibl-e.
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A f or j-t. And she's she just can't remember.

And so there's no one to heIP

O Did you send an email to WesJ-eY

A Yes.

O saying pJ-ease don't forget?

A Yes.

O And has he?

A No.

O What abnormal-ities has caused you concern before

fiJ-ing this motion, and have they continued?

A Can you repeat that? I'm sorrY.

O Okay. Prior to our filing the motion, what other

sicknesses did your daughter have that resulted in our filing

this motion?

A She had strep throat twice, and she had fever

throughout the week while she she was under Vüesley's care.

And he denied to take her over the doctor. I

O Did he take her to school?

A He he kept her home. And so I even called and

and tal-ked to her (sic) dad and tol-d him please to tell Wesley

to take her to the doctor. He was giving in

O His dad?

A Yeah, his dad. Sorry. Grandpa. To take her to the

doctor. I have given him the insurance card. He knew exactly
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where it \^/as and he just woufdn't take her. He thought the

notion that I got is that he thought T was worrying too much,

that when you're just sick with a fever you just stay home.

And I just knew that this \^/as something that was

like constantly happen, she was sick al-l the time, and it \^/as

effecting her schoolwork, she was getting behind. And we just

needed I even, you know, spoke to other mothers to see if

something \^/as going on at schooÌ, like íf , you know, there's a

flu going around.

a So as a resul-t you took her to the doctor?

throat

Yeah, I took her

And what happened?

to the doctor and she was diagnosed with strep

0 And that was the first time?

A That was the first time.

a And what was she given?

A She was given Amoxicill-in?

O Antibiotics?

A

O

A

A

ô

And antibiotics, yes.

Okay. And so that's what Amoxicj'l-lin is,

antibi-otics , right ?

Right.

So
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THB COURT: And excuse me. How many days of school- did

she miss?

THB WITNESS: She missed about two weeks for both. So

she missed one week

THE COURT: Um-hmm (in the affirmative)

THE WITNESS: because she needed t.o get better, and

then then when she had the second one she missed another

week. So the school- even notified me, because she was getting

to where you have certaj-n amount of absences annually

THE COURT: Um-hmm (in the affirmative).

THE VüITNESS: they're concerned. So even the

prì-ncipal. But once I filed the paperwork and the absences

from

THE COURT: Okay. But when Dad had her and wasn't taking

her in for a fever, how many days of school- did she miss on

Dad's

THE VIITNESS: Three.

THB COURT: time?

THB VüITNESS: So she woul-d miss Monday, Tuesday and

wednesday. And then she woul-d go back to school- on my day.

THE COURT: Okay.

BY MS. FINE

O And is that when you had to take her to the doctor

on Thursday?
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A Yeah.

O lrüas she anY better?

A You coul-d just tel-l- she fel-t droopy. But I'd ask

her, are you okay. And So you normally we would take her to

to the doctor after school-.

O So what did You do?

A Because there hlas no communication, You know,

between him and I to saY, hey, she's been sick, da, da, da.

or I can/ t take her to the doctor, can you pick her up and

take her. There wasnf t any communication between both of uS.

O Vühen did you take her to the doctor, when she was at

schooÌ ?

A As soon as (indiscernible) right away. I would make

the appointment, and normally they'd schedul-e me in the

afternoon because that \,vas the onJ-y thing that was available

O So for that afternoon

A But I did take her to the emergency room one time on

O With the streP throat?

a

A

I

rl

A

On yeahr or a Saturday. She had

Do you remember when?

No

Is that since the l-ast hearing?

Vac
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O Okay. Did you teIl Wesley that you're doing that?

A Yes.

O And did he show uP?

A No, but he text'd back.

O He said?

A He was concerned about her, Yeah.

THE COURT: Vùhat did -- what was emergency room visit

about ?

THE WITNESS: She apparently had an aJ-lergic reaction to

the Amoxlcil-l-in. So when \,ve're having dinner, after she took

it, she was breaking out. And I thought she had chicken pox.

so I cal_l_ed him and I l_et him -- I let him know we're al-]

really concerned, because it was something l-ike that took

place real1y fast.

And so I took her to the emergency room and then he

the doctor was abl-e to l-ook at her skin. And he said that

she was in she had an allergic reaction, but he didn't know

to what. He thought it was part of the eczema and didn't tel-l

us to stop giving her the Amoxicil-l-in. So by the tj.me I took

her to the doctor on Monday, then that's when we wele abl-e to

take her off the medicine and give her something else to fight

off the infection.

THE COURT: OkaY.

THE WITNESS: So. . .
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BY MS. FINE:

a And did Wesley go with you to the doctor on the

foll-owing Monday?

A No.

O Did you tel-l- him you v/ere going?

A Yeah.

O And Monday's his day, j-sn't it?

A Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay, Ms. Fine.

E)GI\4INATION BY THE COURT

O So over she had two strep outbreaks and I counted

three doctors' visits. How many doctor visits were there

altogether ?

A Five, because she al-so had l-ice on top of the strep

throat. She was infected with lice. And I didn't know I

noticed when (indiscernible) at the when I picked her up on

Thursday, when we took her to the doctor, and I'm looking, you

know, rubbi-ng her head, and she was infested with lice on top

of it. This Ìitt.le girl went through so much.

O Okay. Of the flve doctor visits, how many did Dad

go to?

A Ah, none.

O Did you get an explanation of where the l-ice came

from? Was there an outbreak in school?

D-IO-427054-D LEWIS O1 /29/14 TRANSCRIPT

EIGHTH JUDIC]AL D]STR]CT COURT - FAM]LY DIVIS]ON - TRANSCRIPT VIDEO SERVICES

601 N. Pecos Road, Las Vegas¡ Nevada 89101 1102) 455-4911

24

79



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

t1

t2

l3

14

l5

t6

l7

18

t9

20

21

22

23

A They said that nobody yeah, I notified the

school-, because you have to, and they they check everybody

in the cl-assroom. And they said that nobody had it, so, that

they were al-l- cl-ear

O Um-hmm (in the affirmative).

A So I have no idea. But f know me and my husband

\^¡ere inf ected, too. We had to get treated, everybody, and we

had to dlsinfect the house and do all- the proper things to

but we we got a handle on it. But I just feel- so bad for

her because she had the strep throat on top of it. And we had

to put the shampoo on her

O Um-hmm (in the affirmative)

on her head. She was she was she went

through a l-ot

O Vühat is your refationshiP

THE COURTz I' m sorry, Ms. Fine. Just have a couple of

questions whil-e I think of them.

MS . FINE: f 'm al-most done.

BY THE COURT

O What is your rel-aLionship l-ike with Vües1ey's

parent s ?

fl

AUm

O Is that his father or his stepfather?

A That's his father.
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O Okay

Yeah. UÍt, wel-l-, virtualJ-y we don' t we don't get

along. Vle used to, and just the relationship j-sn't good, you

know. They think very differently than I. They're Jehovah

Witnesses. So they don't believe in almost anything. So

do or things, they al-waysanything that I

try to preach.

have to celebrate or

And so it's really hard

O Um-hmm (in the affirmative).

A to to have a good but theY're

they mean well. They're loving. I know

good people.

they l-oveThey

Isabella. But like if I were t.o tel-l them a concern, they

think I/m overreacting. Like anything that I if I try to

tel-l- them it's like they just don't want to hear it. It's

almost l-ike they they don't me to be j-nvol-ved and let them

i-t's almost like they want they want they want

Isabell-a on the days and then they don'L want to hear anything

that I if I have to cal-l- them or l-et them know or

communicate.

O Um-hmm (in the affirmative).

A You know, I' Il- let they afl-ow me to call- the l-and

line if Bell-a doesn't answer, but it's really frustrating

because they don't realJ-y help out in that aspect. Like if

there's a concern

O Um-hmm (in the affirmative)
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A to, you know, try to they just they're kind

of like defending their son

O And is Wesley --

A protective.

O was Wesley a practicing Jehovah's Witness when

you were together?

A No. No. He hid it for a while because I wanted to

save the marriage. I went and I had Bible studies.

O But you said he wasn't practicì-ng.

A He wasnf t, but because I wanted to hetp with the

marriage and so I seek Bibl-e studies. And he never wentr so

then I stopped. There \das like no poi-nt.

THE COURT: OkaY.

BY MS. FTNE:

O So how many absences from school- did Bella have

during Vlesley's time in the last year, since the l-ast hearing?

THE COURT: This -- what's the date of the last hearing?

Letf s

MS. FINE: October, 2013.

THE COURT: October, 2013?

MS. FINE: Yes.

THE COURT: Or since I changed custody in what \das

that, May 1st?

MS. FINE: No, it was al-l bef ore.
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THE VüITNESS: NO.

MS. FINE: It \^/as all- bef ore

THB WITNESS: Yeah, before.

MS. FINE: May lst.

THE COURT: T'm sorry?

MS. FINE: It was al-l- before May 1st.

THE COURT: Al-1, before May 1st?

MS. FINE: Sj-nce the l-ast hearing but before May 1st

THE COURT: Okay.

BY MS. FINE:

O Do you remember how many absences he had she had

he she had when with her dad?

A There was a total- of ten.

O And do you know how many absences she had from

schoof during your time?

A Two.

And do you know how many tardies she had during

Wesley's time?

A Something crazy l-ike sevenLeen.

THE COURT: I didn't hear that question or ans!\ier.

BY MS. FINB:

O Let's not

THE COURT: What was the question?

D-IO-421054.D LEWIS O7 /29/I4 TRANSCRIPT

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRTCT COURT - FAMII,Y DIVISION - TRANSCRIPT VIDEO SERVICES

601 N. Pecos Road, Las Vegasf Nevada 89101 (1021 455-4911

24

83



I

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

t0

11

t2

l3

t4

15

16

t7

18

l9

20

2T

22

23

BY MS. FINE:

O No editorial- comment. How many tardies , íf you

recall-, did Wes1ey have with your daughter taking her to

school ?

A It was it was high. It \^Ias

A Does fourteen does that sound right?

A Yes.

O And how many with you?

A Probably l-ike four, and it was because she was

two or fo I mean, the most, f'm just giving a some

O But if you say four that's fine.

A Yeah, like if if f have to say four and it was

because two times of that she was sick, and, you know, she's

was really hard for her to get out of bed with...

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. FINE: Do we have that as exhibit I'm think I'm

trying to remember if we have that as one of the Exhibits.

THE COURT: Whil-e you're looking for that, Ms' Flne, did

Kumon say whether or not she's now at grade level- for second

grade?

THE VùITNESS: She's not. Vüe have I¡/ef re having i-ssue

with the math. She's barely getting to subtraction. So she

was still adding single-digits at the beginning of July. And

nov/ we what they did is they bumped her up and now she's

D-IO-42'7054-D LEWIS O1 /29/TA TRANSCRIPT

E]GHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DIVISION - TRANSCRIPT VIDEO SERVICES

601 N. Pecos Road, Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 (102') 455-4917

24

84



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

1l

t2

l3

I4

l5

16

t7

18

T9

20

2t

22

23

doing double-digits. And she just started wlth the minuses'

which I think is

O What?

A

O

A

Minuses

Minuses.

Subtraction. Subtraction, sorry. She just started

that. Substra -- my accent, I'm sorry. Subtraction. So f'm

concerned because

THE COURT: Okay. So my question was' was she woul-d

Kumon sign off that she's at grade l-evel, and your ansv/er to

that would be ûo, I take it?

THE WITNESS: NO.

THE COURT: OkaY.

BY MS. FTNE:

O But yet the school has said she can go into the

second grade?

A Yes. She's going to go and she's probably going to

be at C. But we're trying to Ifm trying to get her ready.

O Would you look at Pl-aintiff's Proposed Exhibit 14

for me, please. Tel_l- me if you recognize that document.

A Yes, it, s Isabel_f a's daily attendance at Twitchel-l-

Elementary School-.

O And it's dated?

A May 1st, 201,4 .
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O So can you go through that and see on the Mondays'

Tuesdays, Wednesdays, the absences and tardies

THE COURT: Wel-l-, before we can

MS. FINE: Wel-l-, first before I¡ie do that can we admit it?

THE COURT: (No audlble resPonse. )

MS. FINE: I move to admit it.

THE COURT: Any objection, Mr. Lewis, to the attendance

fog, Exhíbit 14, coming in?

(BRTEF PAUSE. )

MR. LEWIS: Well, I guess it's not in its entirety for

the entire school- year, but 90 ahead and admit it. It is

THE COURT: 14 is admitted.

(PLAINTIFF'S PROPOSED EXHIBIT 14 ADMITTED. )

MS. FINE: So I woul-d just

THE COURT: The Court notes the dates go from 8/26/2073

to June 9th, 20L4, which in The court's experience with two

chi-l-dren in the public school- system, is a calendar school

year

BY MS. F]NE:

O So since we were l-ast in court, have there been

other issues of co-parenting that have deveJ-oped that cause

you concern?

A Yes.

a What do they deal with?
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A One is in regards to Isabel-l-a's foot, she she was

not walking st.raight. Her foot was going j-nward. And when we

would go, you know, w€ woul-d take wal-ks or somethi-ng, you

coul-d tetl- she woul-d triP or everybody \^/as wal-king normaf

and then you see her go down. So it was like rea1J-y awkward.

So I had shared it wíth my mom and some of my family

members, and everyone kind of was l-ike, You know, shouJ-d I get

it checked out. And my mom encouraged to take a l-ook, You

know, to have her take to the doctor's. So I invited Wesley

to this doctor appointment, so \^/e all- went together. And the

doctor would say well to look at her foot, he said that he

coul-dn't see a visible her bone structure was fine, her

foot r/,/as fine. But when he spoke to both of us, me and

tlüesley, wesJ_ey said that he was not concerned at all for

Isabel-l-a's foot and made it seem like f f m overreacting and

that we v/ere the doctor said that we were obviously not on

the same page.

So even though T invited, I fel-t like he was mocking

the appointment, he was

O Vlhat did he say about what did the doctor tel-l-

you to do wit.h respect to your daughter's foot? Vüho cares

what he thinks.

A He sald just to keep an eye on it. And eventually

íf I was extremely certain that he would refer me to a
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specialj-st.

But

Yeah?

but so far she can correct it. She was just

walking Lazy.

O Now that you're aware of it

A Yeah. So I would now I can tel-l her, IsabelJ-a,

make sure you wal-k straight. And then she tries and then she

corrects it.

Another can I?

A

ô

A

OSo

O Sure.

A Another was v/e had an i-ssue with Isabel-la not being

able to sleep in her room. So, we have a two-bedroom. One

bedroom for Isabella, and she's not abl-e to sJ-eep in her bed

by herseJ-f . And when we tal-ked about the issue, Isabella

expressed that her father had tol-d her that stuff anj-mals come

al-ive at night, during night, and that's why she was not abl-e

to sleep by herself . So she woul-d try to go j-nto my bedroom

and try to sleep wj-th me, and we woul-d play that game

constantly, so I have to bring her back.

So eventuafly what T dld is I took al-I the stuff

animal-s, donated them and give them away. So this \^/as a huge

problem for me because T'm trying to make her independent. f
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want her to sJ-eep in her room. You knowr 11. trying to make

her room comfortable. And then to hear stuff l-ike this just

makes no sense to me

O Did you ask llüesleY that?

A

ô

A

No.

What, he

I it's hard because I know Isabel-la's saying

something, and I have to pick and choose my battl-es with him.

There's a lot of stuff going on. I what I try to do is

just make her comfortable, get the st.uff animal-s out of the

room and just deal with the best that f can in the room' but I

did not share that with him directly.

a Do you know, with the sleeping arrangements are at

his house, íf you know?

A Yes.

O Vühat are they?

A ApparentJ-y Isabel-l-a

O How do you know, first?

A Wel-l-, IsabelJ-a shares it. She'I1 she'l-l- tel-1 me

that she sleeps with her dad. And

O fn the same bed or in the same room?

I I think it's in the same bed.

But you're not you don't know?

You're no.
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O You're not there. But.

A But that makes her co-dependent, just as hard.

O So l-et's review reallY quicklY.

Why is it that you're seeking primary physlcal

custody of Bell-a?

A Number onef Wesl-ey neglected her medicaÌ needs. She

had fever, she had al-l- the signs that she needed to be taken

to the doctor, and he didn't. That was extremel-y disturbing

for me. We had the health insurance, we have the means. And

even if he coufdn't afford it, it was there for him to take

her there. And he just took it liqhtty. And she got worse

and worse.

Isabel-l-a struggled throuqh a whol-e month, You know,

being sick, being itchy. Something that we coul-d just

prevented it. And because of the l-ack of communication with

him she had to suffer.

O Vlhat about what el-se?

A (Touchlng stomach) Sorry, I just got nervous.

I went bl-ank.

O But the reason

A Al-so the the communication with the cel-l- phone.

It's I want to be cl-ose to my daughter, I want to be able

to communicate, I want her to feef the support from both of

us. I feel that the whol_e cell phone issue is a joke. Plays
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I

games, doesn't al-l-ow her to speak to me. I don't understand

why, you know, he should feel- proud that we all- have a good

relationship. So thatfs al-so another concern that I have that

O How about the theraPY?

A Also the therapy. He was not part of the therapy.

That was extremeJ-y important for Isabell-a, for both of üs¡ to

be j-n there and to be able to work our issues. And he just

didn't take part on 1t on it at al-I.

O Anything else?

A Her grades. I'm concerned about her grades. I need

to monitor Isabell-a. I need to make sure she goes to Kumon'S

twice a week. I want her to be abl-e to have a good foundation

for her education. If she struggles now, she's golng to

struggle throughout the whote her whole l-if e. So right no\^/

is the time to dedicate time to her to teach her, to help her

with her homework. If he doesn't want to do it and he all-ow

me to do it, that'd be different. But he doesn/t even allows

me to do what I need to do for her. And I just can't afl-ow

that to happen. She's my only daughter and I l-ove her to

death. I just got

O Our daughter, remember that.

A I'm sorry. Our daughter.

O So are you wanting to take everything away from
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Wesley? Vühat kind of visitation schedule are you proposing?

A Wel-l, maybe h/e can arranqe every other weekend pJ-us

a date night.

t,

A

al

A

a

A

Every week?

Every week.

And the hoJ-idays, of course?

And the holidays

And why do you want that kind of a schedul-e?

That way I can I can monitor with her schooling,

monitor her health, make sure she gets taken care of. And he

can just be the Disneyland super-dad that he wants to be. He

wants to be her friend. He wants to, you know, be that nice,

need to be the

allow me to do that for

cool- dad that I take you here. And I

responsibfe

her. It's

do what he

parent. And he needs to

what's best for her, and that way he can, you know,

needs to do and I can just take responsibiJ-ity of

her, my daughter.

MS. FINE: I pass the witness.

THE COURT: Um-hmm (in the affj-rmative) . All right.

All right, Mr. Lewis. It/s your turn to ask

questions that are

asked Ms. Perdomo.

MR. LEWIS: f'm

rel-ative to the questions that Ms. Fine

sorry, Your Honor, but I just have a l-ot

of paperwork scattered around me. If you could just mind
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that I just get a second to get them in somewhat order?

THE COURT: (No audibl-e response. )

(BRTEF PAUSE. )

MR. LEWIS: Do you mind if I

drink of water, is it possible?

THE COURT: Yeah, that's what

(PAUSE. )

get is it okay if I get a

it's there for.

You can stay right at your table and have a seat

MR. LEWIS: Yes, Yes, Yes

THE COURT: Have a seat.

MR. LEWIS: Yes, Your Honor.

(BRTEF PAUSB. )

IIARIA PREDOMO EUENTE (LE}TISì

testifies as fol-l-ows

E>(AIqINATION

BY MR. LEW]S

O About her behavior, when when did you ever inform

me or the when did you ever inform the defendant of her

of her behavioral- issues?

A There was a day when I cal_l_ed to do a well-ness check

on her that you didn't take her to school- because you had car

problems. And we had a discussion over the phone that she

missed school-. And Isabel-l-a was crying in the background.

And I was concerned about
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O But that's reall-y not what I when when did

And so

when did you inform me of her

I'm going to tel-l you.

behavioral- i-ssues?

So I -- that day when when the police was there

A

t,

A

O

-H.

THE

THE

MR.

THE

THE

MR.

THE

COURT: What was the date?

VÍITNESS: Sorry, I don't remember.

LEWIS: February 21th.

WITNESS: February, okay, twenty-seventh.

COURT: Of this year?

LEWfS: Twenty-sixth, I'm sorrY.

COURT: And when did she go into tutoring into

counseling?

THE WfTNESS: She went before then.

THE COURT: Okay. So what he's asking

THE VüITNBSS: In SePtember

THE COURT: you is when did you inform him of her

behavioral- issues that l-ead to the counseJ-ing.

THE Vüf TNESS: Prior to September. VÙhen the email-s .

BY MR. LEWIS:

O So five months, five months Prior?

A Yes.
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O Okay. So she's been golng to counseling.

You what documentation have you provided me or

anything of how

( indiscernible )

her counseJ-ing

submitted?

A VÍeIJ- '

present and you

A What

A None.

her progress was in counseling,

knowing that I was that I wanted to go to

with previous email-s that even you have

the the flrst email- where you needed to be

didn't show up.

progress reports, what

O uPdates?

A No Progress rePort \^/ere

O Anythlng?

A sent to You.

O Anything at al-l-?

A No.

O Ever?

A You were suPPosed to contact him.

O Anythlng that even in our modificatlon in the

in not the modification, I'm sorry. In the mediation it

says that one parent, íf something happens prJ-or in one week,

if anything of major occulrence happens, Yoü should inform the

other person, the other party within one week.

THE COURT: VÍhat's Your question?
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MR. LEVIIS: My -- mY question is what there was major

concern being brought

awareness. Itt s hard

from the plaintiff over mY -- mY

for me to be aware when it's not being

9r-ven

THE COURT: OkaY. The question

MR. LEWIS: -- to me.

THE COURT: -- is argumentative.

Do you know what, Mr. Lewis? You have joint legal

custody. You wele informed as to who the counsefor was. It

wasn't her obligation to inform you as to quote, unquote,

progress. It was your obligation aS a concerned parent to

inform yourself.

Let's go onto the next question.

BY MR. LEW]S:

O So so February 26th you you said we tal-ked.

On that same day of the that you came for the wellness

check with the police, I do remember actual-ly talking to

when we \,vere face-to-face, basicaJ-J-y face-to-f ace, You told me

that she had behavj-oral- issues. That was actually the f irst

time I -- I had heard that.

A Yeah, Vou were shock.

a And f was shocked. And I actualJ-y addressed it to

Isabel-la in that moment.

THE COURT: What v/ere you shocked about?
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MR. LEWIS: Her behavior of how she she treats her

mother.

THE COURT: So what's Your question?

MR. LEWIS: My question, I guess, is why didn't why

dldn't we or don't v/e¡ from her standpoint or our standpoint,

be abl-e to tatk about counseling.

The counsel-ing that I did attend, when I took it

upon myseJ-f, on April 1st, to Mr. vùarren Wheatley so I can get

to know him and he can get to know me. I scheduled another

appointment with him that he rescheduled for the next week. I

came in that next week and he said it was a conflict of

interest and he couldn't see me. And I was

MS. FINE: I woul-d object on hearsay. He'll- be here and

be able to testify.

THE COURT: Yeah, you can ask Mr. wheatley questions when

he comes in to testify. If you're you know, if you h/ere

golng in to ask him to give you therapy that would be a

confl-ict of interest. So I don't know exactly transpired that

d"y, but we'l-1 find out when he takes the stand.

What's your next question? Vühy don't the two of you

talk, is that your question?

MR . LEVII S : No, no .

THE COURT: Vùe1I, that/s the big questi-on for The court,

why don,t t.he two of you talk. Thirty thousand dol-lars in
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legaJ- f ees later.

MR. LEWIS: YES. I Ifve f 've I completely

agree.

BY MR. LEWIS:

O We've never t.ried to go to mediation. It your

course of action has been direct and right to The Courts. I

didn't intend for anything to be l-ike this. I

MS. FINE: Objection. There's no question.

MR. LEWIS: I'm sorry?

THE COURT: You have to ask questions, Mr. Lewis, based

upon the

MR. LEWIS: On on the questions.

THB COURT plaintiff's testimony so far.

MR. LEWIS: I understand. I

THE COURT: I mean

MR. LEWIS: wrote down as fast as I coul-d.

THE COURT: You can give your o\^In testimony when itf s

your turn.

BY MR. LEVüIS :

O Vùhen when Kumont s when Kumon's came to

after June, in summertime, the Judge's ruJ-ing was that I was

to take her after school- to

Correct

to Kumonf s?
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And I compJ-ied. And the the days that you put

down on the when I took her to the Daddy-Daughter dance

because they they pushed the Luau, whatever. They pushed

it to the Crystal Pal-ace Skating Rink.

A Um-hmm (in the affirmative).

O And then the date. . .you didn't find it sufficient

that or I was under t.he understandÍng, since it was from

the ruJ-ing from a court, that I woul-d not and I did respond

that T would not take her because of the distance, without her

being from me picking her up at Twitche.ll, then taking her

one mife, a mil-e-and-a-ha1f, just as the Judge pointed out to

fr€¡ that it was not too far out of my -- my way to be able to

comply with what you had enrolled her in.

But after the enroJ-lment, and it goes into the

summertJ-me, it it turns it into a different travel issue.

And I did express that to you in a in a email. Did you not

receive that?

A Yes.

O OkaY.

were saying and

when I repJ-ied

A Okay.

O OkaY?

A Yes.

I guess, for me, I I understood what you

I just wanted to make sure that you understood

about v/hy I wasn't going to take her?

So we both understood that?
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o As far as the payments to Kumon's. Vühen the order

was put in, r be]ieve in october, the Judge made a ruling

October Bth, and it was mail-ed to both both of us, I

bel_ieve, and I received a copy of it in December. It it

gave a judgment for the ruJ-ing for the months of

which had al-ready passed, which

October,

November, December, you

testified for me being deflcient in not paying.

You did not put that order in yourself and you

didn't waf k it to the FamiJ-y Support Division until- February

for me to start paying, because I -- I actual-Iy went to them

to make to see when I should start paying because nothing

was being taken from my check. Whether any efforts from you

to make a coordinated effort to heJ-p me understand how to pay

Kumont s ?

A Tt was your responsibility' okay.

MS. FINE: It m going to object. I don't see I don't

know what the question is.

THB COURT: Shh.

The question is, what efforts did mom make to tell

dad how to pay for tutoring.

MS. FINE: All right. OkaY.

MR. LEVùIS : She coul-d telÌ

THE VùITNESS : I'm sorry

MR. LEWIS: Oh, I'm sorrY.
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THE WITNBSS: but you you want me t.o

THE COURT: That's your quest

Wait a sec. Don't

THE I'üITNESS: Sorry.

THE COURT: That's your question' right?

MR. LEWIS: Yes. Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All- right.

Can you answer that question?

THE WITNESS: Yeah. T'm f'm not here to be your mom.

You're you already know. Youfre taking her in. You know

Scott. You know the whol-e staff for Kumon's. You you can

ask them, how much is it. You can ask me, did you send me an

email-s. f 'm I can't be constantly asking you for money. I

have a commitment, put my credit card and paying it. When you

decided to go in there and be invol-ved and you sâY, okay' I

want to pitch in, I want to give this, did you ever contact

me? I --

THE COURT: Okay. You don't ask him questions.

THE WITNESS: SorrY.

THE COURT: So your answer is, he's taking your chiÌd

there, he knows the people who are there, he knows where to

go, alt he has to do is ask them how to pay?

THE WITNESS: ExactIY.

THE COURT: That's Your answer?

a
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THB WITNESS: YCS

THE COURT: Okay.

That's your anshler.

BY MR. LEW]S:

a My i-nvolvement with Kumon's is was every week, it

was every Monday. And you stated you are very troubl-ed with

her attendance and how much I help with Kumon's?

A Yes.

a And the two days that you brlng up that she missed,

I replied to why she missed those two days of Kumon's. Is

there any other reference points to days that I missed taking

her to her Kumonf s?

A Summerti-me you have not been taking

^ 
Ào I --\¿

A Isabella.

O as I just tal-ked to you just previously, the

email- that I sent to you ì-nforming you and adhering to the

Judge's ruling to take her to Kumon's after school- I would

completely comply with. But after school got out for the

summertime, the travel distance became greatly enhanced.

A I email- you and tol-d you that you can pick her up at

two f ifteen to all-eviate that.

O So were you trying to change the judgment without

going
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MS. FINE: Objection. Stating facts not in evj-dence and

THE COURT: And it's

MS. FINE: -- misrepresentlng the order.

THE COURT: Sustained. It's argumentative.

And just to be clear, the order, Page elght of

eleven from the I0/B/73 hearing is this, that defendant shal-l

take Bel-l-a to her Kumon tutoring class on Mondays immediately

after school. Bella shall continue to receive tutoring

services until she's testing at oI above grade level aS tested

by Kumon or plaintiff and defendant mutually decide to

terminate the tutoring. If Bel-Ia is testing at or above grade

l-evel and one parent wishes to continue the tutoring, that

shall- be at the parent's sofe expense. If Bel-la needs

tutoring again 1n the future, based upon her grades, her

teacher recoÍtmendation, the cost of the tutoring wil-l be

equally borne by the parties. That's the order.

MR. LEWIS: Your Honor.

BY MR. LEWIS:

O Now Bella, you said, didn't test to her grade level?

A In math, ûo.

O fn... (mumbles to self ) ...I have it here...

(PAUSE. )

Now for her report cards and and everything, all
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of her testing throughout the year that you said she started

out with straight A's, which she did, her second trimester she

v'/as A -- A/B and the third she was A/B as \,vell. And there

were no C's. She tested and this is just from her report

cards, not from the actual tests that they get to her being

above not just her grade l-evel-, but meeting Twitchel-l-'s

standards as weIl, which are exceptj-onaIly higher than the

Cl-ark County School- Districts -- you would say she was

THE COURT: Objection sustained. That's facts not in

evidence as to Twitchell's standing in this case. And my

order is very cl-ear, that it's based upon Kumon'S testing and

not what the School District j-s saying in her report cards.

MR. LEVTIIS: When f read it, Your Honor, I thought it

stated

THE COURT: I'l_l_ read it again. BeIIa shal-] continue to

recej-ve tutoring services until she'S testing at or above

grade l-evel as tested bY Kumon.

MR. LEVüIS: And if Kumon's is not tested wasn't there

I thought Ifm sorry, Your Honor, I thought there was one

more part to that.

THE COURT: In parenthesis, Or if Kumon it says does

test. That might be does not test by the CRT's administered

by the Clark County School- District.

cRT's are standardized testing not the report cards.
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MR. LEWIS: Correct, the standardized testing. That's

actualty what I was referencing that f'm not the the

report cards

THE COURT: Well, you're waving report cards 1n your

hand.

MR. LEVüIS : ] f'm Iam I am definitely sorryf

Your Honor, that f have paperwork everywhere and I'm trying my

best to find everythlng.

THE COURT: Did she take CRT's l-ast year?

THE VÍITNESS : She did.

THE COURT: She dld?

THE WITNESS: And they

THE COURT: Vüell, she

THE VüITNESS: do it every year

THE COURT: woul-d have taken them in the spring. Have

they been made avail-able yet?

THE VüITNESS: I T think they are. I just

THE COURT: Did you see them?

THE VIITNESS: Not that f can remember, to be honest with

you.

THE COURT: Do you have her CRT's?

MR. LEVüIS: Yes, I have them with me, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Did you produce them in discovery?

MR. LEVüIS: I am about to check.
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THE COURT: Because you didn't give me any of Kumon's

testing.

MR. LBVüIS : I've never had it l-ike I've never underst

I never had t.he testing f rom Kumon's.

THE COURT: Okay. Tt m just J-ooking for the CRT's right

now.

MR. LEWIS: This woul-d be one of them.

(Indiscernibl-e ) sit down

On the

THE COURT: Show it to Ms. Fine first. See if she has a

copy of it

MS. FINE: Is that what you gave me?

MR. LEWIS: (Indiscernibl-e. )

MS. FINE: No Bate stamps thoughr so I've just got to

find it. Let me see if I can find it.

VÍhat exhibit is it, can you teIl me that, si-r? If

you can tel-l- me what exhibit. is it I can f ind it.

MR. LEWIS: f beli-eve it'd be under Exhibit 5.

MS. FINE: A so You have A6?

MR. LEWIS: 45.

MS. FINE: Okay. So why don't you ask her 1f she has

seen this document and what it is.

MR. LEWIS: I do not

MS. FINE: To me it's hearsay, because I don'L know
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MR. LBWIS: I don't know if I'm al-Iowed to stand and show

it to her or if I/m supposed to hand it to it

THE COURT: Take it out of that stack that you have in

your hand. We'l-l- give it to the clerk to mark as your first

exhibit.

It/ s just the one-page document, the CRT?

MR. LEVÍ IS : This is it's for math. There/ s one for

math and one for Bnglish or reading and writing.

THE COURT: Do you have the whol-e packet for the CRT's?

MR. LEVüTS: (No audible resPonse. )

THE COURT: Do you have math and BngJ-ish on one page?

MR. LBIIüIS: They're on two separate pages. I I have

the math on on me in my person's I

THE COURT: You don't have the math?

MR. LEWIS: I do, that's the one I ¡ust handed

THE COURT: And do you have the other one?

MR. LEWIS: I I most J-ikely I most like1y do.

MS. FINE: Have you seen what the date of this is? March

L6, 2014.

THE COURT: fs that the one- or two-page document pJ-ease?

It's a one-page document?

THE MARSHAL: (No audible response. )

THE COURT: Do you have a two-page document there, Ms.

Fine, or a one-page?
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MS. FINE: I have a bunch of documents. This is

THE COURT: I know, but as to a CRT.

MS . FINE : No, I have thi- s one page it says dad, then

f have a report card, and then I have the comments. And then

I have

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. FINE: -- on

THE COURT: I,M

All right.

can identify it.

the first page of the exhibit is

just interested in the CRT.

Let's show it to the witness, see if she

MS. FINB: So you first you have to ask her if she's

ever seen that document.

THE WITNESS: I don't remember.

THE COURT: Have you ever seen that before?

THE WITNESS: I don't remember. I think I saw it for the

first year.

MS. FINE: There's a date up in the upper, lefthand

corner, Maria. Look at the date.

THE WITNESS: 2013/201"4. March 16, 2014

THE COURT: Does it say when it was administered?

THE WTTNESS: Generated March 16, 2014

MS. FINE: It was generated. But the school- for the

school- year 2013 to 20L4

THE WITNESS: 20!3/2014. So it \,vas last year. But I
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I don't even know how to read this.

THE COURT: Last year she was in first grade, right?

THB WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: So they wouldn't

THE WITNESS: So she woul-d

THE COURT: have tested her in kindergarten?

THE VüITNESS: NO.

THE COURT: Al-l right.

But you can't al-l- r1ght. We're going to have to

wait until Mr. Lewis can take the stand and he can see to

admit it hlmself.

MS. FINE: Or we've got the teacher who's coming j-n.

THE COURT: AlI right. Or the teacher.

MS. FINE: That/ s good.

THE COURT: Okay. Can you make a copy of that so he can

have it a copy back?

All- right. Mr. Lewis, she doesn't recognize it, SO

we can't admit it through Ms. Perdomo. So ask your next

question.

MR. LEWIS: Okay, Your Honor.

(BRIEF PAUSE. )

BY MR. LEW]S:

a When Isabel-l-a was sick

THE COURT: Vühich time?
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MR. LEWIS: It/ s actually, for her being sick j-t's

al_most a brick of time, Your Honor. It's it real-Iy bran

I whoÌeheartedJ-y agree with Maria.

THE MARSHAL: I think you misunderstood. Vühen you do

things like that you feave my courtroom.

MS. FINE: What'd he do?

THE MARSHAL: ApparentJ-y passing up notes and making

contact with you.

MS. FINE: No, he's just trying to help me.

THE MARSHAL: It wasn,t a first time that I've noticed.

MS. FINE: I apologize. I -- he was just trying to

remind me of things.

THE COURT: Is he with Your office?

MS. FINE: He's her husband.

THE COURT: Al-1 right.

Mr. Hooper, I'm going to l-et him stay in, but he has

to stop it. It's distracting to The court, and you see the

l-evel- of irritation it causes my marshaÌ, so

MS . FINE: Absol-utelY. I Promise

THE COURT: -- don't

MS. FINE: -- he won't do it again.

THE COURT: -- don't do it again.

MS. FINE: He was just trying to help me, but f won't ask

for his help.
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THE COURT: Okay. At some poì-nt I'l-1 take a break and

you can catch up with Ms. Fine during the break. Okay? Atl

r j-ght.

Okay. Mr. Lewis, ask Your question.

MR. LEVùIS: I'm sorrY, I --

THE COURT: When she was sick, what?

MR. LEVüIS: I really had a question and that kind of

blanked it alvay from my mind. I

BY MR. LEVÍIS :

O Vühen she was sick, Maria, I definitely

MS. FINE: Can you ask a question? Ask a question,

please.

MR. LEVIIS : Yes, f can.

MS. FfNE: You don't testify

BY MR. LEWIS:

O The Amoxicil-l-in that h/as administered to Isabell-a

that she had an allergic reaction to, was she in your physical

care during the Amoxicillin treatment?

A Yeah, and then there l¡/as Yes.

O Did either party, me or You, have any prior

knowledge to her being allerqic to Amoxicil-lin

A No.

O and it causing a rash?

A No, this was new. VÍe did not know. Ilüe weren't
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aware.

O When she had a relapse of strep throat, it was due

to what? What was it due to, was it due to her immune system

from fighting off being from the Amoxicillin and the

treatments that were henceforth?

A The thlng with Amoxicil-lin is we v/ere almost

finished the treatment for her. That treatment was done, and

then she had the reaction right at the l-ast days

tt

A

a)

Right.

So I gave her the Amoxicillin.

T never gave her the Amoxicil-l-in. She was never in
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my care during

THE COURT: Don't argue.

THB VüITNESS: I was Pass

THE COURT: She's giving

THE WITNESS: it was

MR. LEVüIS : I'm sorry.

THE COURT: -- an answer.

MR. LEWIS: f'm sorry.

THE WITNESS: It \^/as passed onto you, the Amoxicil-lin was

passed onto you, then she came back. And that's when, You

remember, they lapsed, then on Friday she had the rash stil-l-?

BY MR. LEVüIS:

O The dates that I have Isabella, Mondayr' Tuesday,24
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Vüednesday, and I drop her off on school- on Thursd.y, the dates

that

MR. LEWIS: Sorry, Your Honor. Just messed up

(indiscernibl-e ) .

BY MR. LEWIS:

O There was a stretch in February

the affirmative) .Um-hmm (in

correct, where she míssed a week of school- and

you asked you asked me if it was okay if she stayed with

you during my time; is that correct?

A Yeah, she did not want to go to your home

A

O I'm just as

ô

A

A She asked

I'm just asking. fs

she asked you if she coul-d stay with me, and you'

O Because

A She stayed with me throughout the whol-e week.

O Correct.

I¡úas I defiant in in was I -- I was concerned?

A Um-hmm (in the affirmative).

O f was concerned?

A Yes, you were. And you al-l-owed her

O AndT--

YEÞ
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to stay with me.

because that's what she asked, she requested that

MS. FfNE: Asked and answered. Let's move oflr pJ-ease.

Sorry

BY MR. LEWTS:

O As wel-l- as the next time that she missed an extended

period of tj-me due to being sick, was she in my physical

custody?

A No, I took her to the doctor.

O When you take her to the doctor, what days do you

take her to the doctor?

A On my custodial time.

O Is it right away when you notice something?

A

ô

A

a

A

rl

Yeah.

Now what days wouÌd those normally be?

Thursday or Friday.

And have you ever taken her oû¡ sâY, on a l-ater date

ona Monday during my time orona Sunday or a Saturday and

A No, it was on

then not informed me?

It was ûo, you were I tried to email- you. I

emailed you, you weren't informedt oT I text'd you and l-et you

know.

t)

.É\
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O When

A I backed try to backed it up with an email-. The

only time

O Would it be prior?

I took her to

woufd it be prior or or after you've already

taken her to the doctor?

A It was in the moment whil-e I was waiting in their

waì-ting room

O And then and waiting in the doctor's office?

A The emergency room' I mean, I coul-dn't predict it.

a Not just that occurrence, but other other

doctors' visits. Do You do you l-et me know to be Present

or what is about to haPPen?

A If it's an emergency and it was right there when I

picked her up from school, Iike Ms. Burgess, for once, she

tofd me that she had Red Eye and she didn't go to P. E ' So

A

ô

when she got in the car I I looked at her

were informed by email, You were text'd.

coufdn't probably make it that time. But

and I took her. You

Obviously you

for the follow-ups

you pretty it was email- sent out to you so you

those emails?Did you did you provide

I think on the first.

I there's a lot that had been supplemented to me
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just today.

A

ô

A

Wel-l-, the emails

13, 14 .

were -- v/ere exhibit.

THE

MR.

COURT:

LEVüI S :

Vühat' s your

Let's just

next question?

I' I]- just go on to issue of her

T apol-ogj-ze to The Courttelephone since I I real-Iy am

and Your Honor for having no experience being an attorney.

BY MR. LEWIS:

a The issue with her phone is that you say that you

don't have a opportunity to speak with her. And that's

currentfy going ofl¡ that's what you say?

A Yeah, this l-ast weekend I was abl-e to text her.

O Now even

THE COURT: You have to speak up so I can hear you.

THE IlüITNESS : Yeah.

THE COURT: You're mumbling.

THE VüITNBSS: This yesterday I was able to text her

and the day before I was able to text her.

BY MR. LEWIS:

O So thatf s two daYs in a row?

A Vac

O And I've I've only had her for two days.

And prior to that you had her phone number changed?
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Vühich you \^/ere

And her phone service? I'm just asking, is that

this this summer months?

that's correct, rlght?

Yeah.

So there wouJ-d be a period of time where she didn't

even wasn't even supplied with a phone during

¡\

ô

A

(2

even wa

AIt it \^/as f rustrating when the phone didn't work

and there was a lapse, maybe for a week or two, when we

changed the phone number. And you weren't calling her, I

wasn't calling her

O I actually did call- her

So we

And I because I didn't understand it.

(HANDS CLAPPING)

A You had you You

O But you did send -

THE COURT: Stop it. Stop it, Mr. Lewis. She's

answering the question and you're tal-king right over her.

MR. LEWIS: Your Honor, (indiscernible).

THE COURT: What happened with the phone? Why did you

have to change the numJoer?

THE WITNESS: WeJ-1, I had a prepay. And what I did is I

went to T-Mobite and I changed that. So I wanted a plan
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THE COURT: Uh-huh

THE I'üITNESS: a secure plan so f wouldnf t have to go

pay the prepay.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE VüITNESS: I want to pay it monthly. So I got her 4,

an iphone, and, you know, I kind of spoil her with the phone.

And so it was just she didn't have to worry about like

paying it or I dj-dn't have to worry about paying it, it

woul-d just be locked in.

And so what we did is vùe changed the screen and we

put a code on it so Dad coul-d not touch the phone. She told

me that he was controlling the phone and that's v/hy she

couldn't cal-l me. And every time it \^/aS l-ike a stress factor.

So what \de did is \^/e put a password and now she's able to go

into it and she can text me. And, you know, w€ don't tal-k on

the phone. And I kind of understand it's a hard situation for

her because she feels like she has to listen to him whil-e

she's under his care. But she doesn't feel- free on the phone

and she tells me it's an issue that he has. I'm not there. I

can/ t see it.

THE COURT: Okay' But I'm just asking.

So you got her a new iPhone?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: And has communication improved?
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THB WITNESS : A l-ittl-e bit, yes . She' s text' d me .

THE COURT: That's just in the few days before this

hearing?

THE WITNESS: Ille}l, her birthday's coming up. Yes.

THE COURT: The question

THE WITNESS: Two days. Yes.

THE COURT: is did the communication improve just a

few days before this hearing?

THE VüITNESS: YES.

THE COURT: But up to that it still hadn't been good?

THE WITNBSS: NO.

THE COURT: Okay.

All right. So what's your next question?

BY MR. LEWIS:

O VüeIl, I bel-ieve I I loefieve you submitted

something. I just Ian across it looking through it. That an

email and a message that that we sent back and forth. This

is on from Frances Fine's 13.

MS. FINE: From Exhibit 13?

MR. LEVIIS: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. So what's your question?

MR. LEWIS: Wel-1, it's it's going to go into the

phone. Just I addressed the phone in February, Thursday'

February 6th, 2014
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MS. FINE: Can you show me \^/hat you're talking about?

MR. LEWIS: It's a

THE COURT: Vùhich exhibit of Exhibit 13 are you referrj-ng

to? Let's start with that.

MR. LEIIüIS: There's so many (indiscernibl-e) .

MS. FINE: I know they're 1n chronol-ogical order¡ so

MR. LEVüIS : I see page it' s

THE COURT: Each exhibit has a cover sheet telling what

exhibit it is.

MR. LEWIS: It/s right

MS. FINE: How about

MR

MS

LEVÙIS: after her picture.

FfNE: Right.. And it says so it's Exhibit

(indiscernibl-e ) .

THE COURT: Is this the Gmaif entitled unable to reach

Isabel-l-a?

MR. LEWIS: Yes, it this is correct

THE COURT: Al-1 right. So what's your question?

BY MR. LEWIS:

O That. my question is that from her standpoint,

that she's not abl-e to contact and get in touch wlth my

daughter

MS. FINE: Our daughter.
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BY MR. LEVüTS :

O Our daughter, I'fii sorry. Our daughter, even though

we have made I I have definitely made an effort to

establish Isabel-la belng responsible for her phone as well,

but to make sure that she contacts you. Did you not receive

this email- or understand that that there was there was a

party on my on my side that I was trying to help, t.hat I

was aware that there were improvements that needed to be made?

MS. FINE: She responded to that before.

THB VIITNESS : Yes, I I recei-ved that emaif .

BY MR. LEVÍIS:

O Did you respond to it?

A I pretty sure I dld, but I don't have it in front

of me

MR.

MS.

MR.

THE

MR.

MS.

MR.

MS. FINE: Do you want to give it to her?

LEVüIS: Sure. Or I

FINE: Well, I can'L.

LEI'üIS: I/m so

COURT: Vühat do you want? What are you trying to do?

LEWIS: Show that

FINE: Confirm it.

LEWIS: that confirm that she sent me this

email- about it, that I an that I answered to it, and that

that v,/as the l-ast of the messages concerning the phone
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MS. FINB: Document speaks for itself, and The Court can

take judlcial notice since it is a part of the record.

THE COURT: It's exhibit attached to Exhibit 13, whj-ch is

the motion. It starts with Pl-aintif f 's email- to Defendant

Thursday, February

responds Thursday,

6th at eight thirty a.m. Defendant

February 6th at two oh two p.m. I just

have these two emails. f don't know if there's anymore email-s

that were in this chain of communications.

Pl-aintiff was asked if were there any other emails

f rom this period of time and she responded I don't recal-l-.

Next email's dated Wednesday, September 25th, 2013, six forty-

two p.m. Well, J-etf s start, yeah. Vüesley, f 'm trying to

reach Isabel-l-a on her cel-l phone, it/s off as it was

yesterday, inf ormed you of the situation on our l-ast email-.

And there's another one dated that doesn't have to do with

the cel-l phone. So there's two complaining about cel-l- phone

issues. Okay.

Al-I right. Vühat's your next question?

BY MR. LEWIS:

O Vüas there any other times that Isabel-la well,

you've had concerns just recently with her foot and you say I

I was present for t.he doctor's visj-t. Your concerns were

that they that she had a crooked foot or she wasn't walking

straight, incorrectly. You al-so stated that I was acting a
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way of making fun of you, is that what you were is that

Yeah. Vühen the doctor

like I was mocking you?

when the doctor came in and he asked you, you're

not the same page as her, and you're like' no

¡t

II

A

on

o

A

O

A

u

Okay

And you l-ef t.

Did

And then

Was

Go ahead. I' m sorry.

A And then he asked me, you knowr so you're the only

one concerned and I said yes. You were kind of l-ike laughing

l-lker âs if I made the the appointment to waste time. And

I didn't appreciate that, yoü know. Like if I invited you,

it's because I'm real-ly concerned she has a

O lrüas I not present? Because I wasn't laughing. It

I^/a heal-th is never a laughing matter, it's not an issue to

be made fun of. f woul-dn't do that. It's not how I take our

daughter. It is about very much concern.

You stated that in that doctor's appointment you

stated your concerns. He asked me if I had any concerns, and

my answer was?

A No. He said, are you on the same page as her. And
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you said/ no

a üüere there

we don't have to be

\¡/as there anything I provided to the doctor of

activities that we

Yeah.

both have

You said that

SO

she played tennis, and while she played tennis
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A
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with you she was fine, You never notice anything. I I tol-d

the doctor that f was pJ-anning on putting Isabel-la on a soccer

team in September and I wanted to have her fook at the foot,

because if she can't run, if she's always tripping. So I

wanted to make sure that she gets her physical, do you

remember, prior to the soccer? Because it's somethlng

O I'm l-istening. If m listening, I/m not

(indiscernible) .

A that¿s something that I woufd l-ike to put her in.

She's, you know, very athletic. She l-oves sports. We done

gymnastic, now we wanted to move forward into soccer.

O Speaking upon gymnastics, the doctor also said

something that I found to be very teJ-Iing, is that he al-so

brought up the fact that24
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MS. FINB: f'm going to object on hearsay. But

MR. LEVüIS : Okay . I'm sorry

THE COURT: What is your question for her?

MR. LEWIS: It concerns stress to her J-egs and her feet

MS. FINE: What you coul-d ask is, did the doctor mention

anythlng about stress that you're concerned about.

BY MR. LEW]S:

O Did the doctor mention any stressful activities that

might af fect Isabel-la's

A She said that because you probably

O He?

would not sorry, sorry that he woul-d not

see, that you might not see that because when she's playing

tennis she'll- be okay. But she said that he acknowfedged that

I had a concern, because maybe when Isabel-l-a did gymnastics,

because she puts pressure and she has to (indiscernibl-e) --

she puts pressure on her feet, that maybe when she did

gymnastics then that was something that, You know, I coul-d see

but that you could not see.

O Has she ever done competitive cheer?

A Yes.

O How J-ong?

A She did it for about six months.

O Was there a concern by the doctor

A
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MS. FINE: That would be hearsay.

MR. LEWIS: Can f ask -- I don't know if I can ask it.

BY MR. LEVü]S:

O Was there a concern by the doctor or just

acknowJ-edgment of such activities that could put abnormalJ-y

stressfu.l- things on her, like it was a concern and he just

brought he brought it up in just talking?

A For for cheer?

O For

A No. He

O He specifically said competitive cheer.

A No, because f share what activities she's done in

the past. But he wasn't saying it was because of t.hat.

O In November you took her to the doctor to see and

it was over actually her legs?

A No, it was she had a a her muscle was tense

in her back.

O And she missed school- after that day, right?

A Yeah, she woke up in pain. She said her her back

her lower back was hurting. And she had a competition that

weekend.

O Do you remember exactly, I remember that.

A Yeah.

O And she went to that competit.ion, did she not?
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A Yeah, she said she was feeling better.

O Right after, right after, not missj-ng going to

the doctor, missing school-, then Saturday competitive cheer?

A She had competitive cheer that weekend

O Correct.

A

v

yeah

Okay. And after wel-l-, you didn't inform me

you didn't

question

MS. FINE: Ask a question.

MR. LEVTIIS: I'm sorry.

MS. FINE : I'm sorry . I'm sorry. Obj ection. No

THE COURTT lt m much more patient than Yoü, Ms. Fine?

MS. FINE: f know you are. I'm not. I apologize.

THE COURT: Vüel-Ì.

MR. LEVüIS: You know, f beg The Court's forgiveness. I

really have to use the reqtroom. I realJ-y honestly do. I

THE COURT: Al-I right. Let's take a break for ten

minutes

MR. LtrVüIS: Thank you, Your Honor.

RECORDING OFF 15:58:38

RECORDTNG ON 16: 09: 55

THE COURT: are you just about done here, Mr. Lewis?

MR. LEWIS: I I hope so, Your Honor. I
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THB COURT. It m sorry?

MR. LBWIS: I bel-ieve so. I believe so¡ Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you have anymore questions or are you

done ?

MR. LEWIS: I just have one. If 1l- make it as fast as

possible.

THE COURT: All right. Go ahead

BY MR. LEWIS:

O The l-ast thing I have to address for right now, I/m

sorry, is just you said she sleeps not in her own room. At

your residence or at mine?

says. She's she's states she's sleeping with you at your

residence.

A At your

O Even

OSo

we1l, I don't know. This is what she

even though that she's had her own room and

her own bed and since the Judge ordered in October for al-l

of that to be set into place?

A Isaloel-la has f ear of the dark and stuf f animal-s.

A

O

A

u

A

So she's unabl-e to sleep

at

by herself at my home

At your home?

and, according to her, at your home as wel-l-
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O And

A

0

A

al

She's

I'm sorry. Go ahead.

So mostJ-y she sleeps with

She doesn't sleep with me

you.

She sleeps in her l_n

her own room. And you just moved into a into a two

bedroom?

A

I

A

Yeah.

In December 31st? Something

Yeah, ñy lease \^/as it was 1n the same complex.

Up I upgraded.

a And so prior to that it was just a one-bedroom?

A Yeah, I slept on the sofa and she I gave her the

bedroom, since since I only had her a coupJ-e days.

O And how long were you at that residence?

A Since November, 2012. A year. The lease was for a

year, until November 2013. And then I upgraded it into the

two bedroom for this year.

O And prior to that?

A Ihada

THE COURT: This doesn't have to go

MR. LEWIS: f'm sorry.

THE COURT: Sustained. We're not going back on

MR. LEVüIS : Okay.
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BY MR. LEWIS:

O So just to establish, and she has just recentJ-y

moved into a two-bedroom an opportunity to have her own

room?

MS . FINE: I don' t think December. Just recentJ-y.

THE WTTNESS: It I^ras the lease is done in November

31st, so.

BY MR. LEW]S:

O Vlhen 1t was I just remember when you moved into

A Yeah

O to your new resj-dence and you sent a very

congratulatory email- .

And I can understand it can be an adjustment for her

over into a different residence. But I just wanted to make it

clear that she she does she does have her own room and

A Okay.

and she sJ-eeps j-n and there's no tal-es of

of stuf f ed animal-s.

But of those things that were had been addressed

to Vrlarren WheatJ-ey?

A What, the bedroom situation?

O The terrifying the hor if she's horrified or
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A No, this was new.

A Like a month. Less than a month.

But she's she's sleeping now. But the whole

transition, it's like I had to get as soon as I got all the

stuff animals she was okay. So it \^/as Ìike and then, you

know, it was r/,/as it an issue that she saw Toy Story?

That's the onJ-y thing I coul-d think of . Toy Story or

something that it had that l-inked. And she was very

particular

And then she was really shy about telling me that

you apparently had told her that stuff animals come al-ive at

night. And I was just li-ke f don't know if it \¡/as like a

tale or I don't know what it was, but it really scared her

And then I don't know if t.hat was a r^/ay f or her to

come and sleep with us, but I can tel-l- Isabel-l-a has a

difficulty sleeping by herseJ-f and she's scared of the dark

because of something. I donft. know what it is. And so I'm

trying to break that habit

O This is

O Okay.

how recent is this?

MR. LEVüIS: Your Honor, I guess that's all- I have for

now. I don't know

THE COURT: All right. Thank You.

MS. FINE: I can start with Mr. Lewis if you'd l-ike or I
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can wait till next

THE COURT: Ma'am/ if you can sit next to Ms. Fine.

MR. LBWIS: I (indiscernible).

THE VüITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: No, let's get as much done as we can today'

MS. FINE: Okay.

THE COURT: Ms. Fine, f'm just curious. Did you get any

session notes from Mr. WheatleY?

MS. FINE: He's going to bring them. He woul-dn't rel-ease

them.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. FINE: He said he would bring them.

If you want then ahead of time f can get them.

THE COURT: No, it's okay

MS. FINE: He asked me if I wanted them. I said I don't

think that I coul-d f don't think that would be Proper

MR. LEWIS: ft's (indiscernibJ-e) .

MS. F]NE: for HIPPA to make it part of the record.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. FINE: But I need some dlrection on that. Some,

yeah.

So, Mr. Lewis, can I have you up on the stand'

pJ-ease ?

MR. LBVüIS : Yes, but I'm taki-ng al-l- of this .
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MS. FINE: Okay.

THB COURT: Bring a pen and your pad to write on in case

you want to give testimony when Ms. Fine's done questioning

you.

MS . FINE: Are you col-d?

MS. PREDOMO: Si.

THB COURT: You've been sworn in. Have a seat.

MS. FINE: WeJ-I, I guess' you know, I shoul-d have taken

her on redj-rect, but I didn't. Oh, well-. I only had a few

questions. Can I just ask her a couple questions from here?

THE COURT: Yeah, 90 ahead.

},ÍARIA PREDOMO E'[,ENTE (LEWIS)

testif ies as fol-l-ows:

EXAI\ÍINATION

BY MS. FINE:

O Did Mr. Lewis ever ask you to go to mediation?

A In the beginning, yeah, wê both we both had to.

Vühat beginning?

(No audibl-e response. )

No, no. Since

No. No.

October of 2013

No.

dj-d Mr. Lewis ever ask you about mediation?
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MS. FINE: That's al-l- right now. I'm going to ask hlm

some questions.

Court's indulgence.

Okay.

And now you can help me. I need a paral-ega1 today.

VIESLEY ATLEN LEIIIS

having been called as a witness by the Pl-aintiff and being

first duly sworn, testifies as fol-lows:

EXAIUINATION

BY MS. FINE:

O So you're Wesley Lewis, right?

A This is correct.

a And what's the extent of your formal education?

A No.

O Okay.

A

I

.É\

O

A

o

A

ô

A high school- diploma.

Okay. And your residential address?

4650 Idaho Avenue, 89L04, Las Vegas, Nevada.

891-04.

And your age?

I just turned thirty-seven.

And you're J-ivlng with your folks; is that right?

This is correct.

And you were formally married to Maria, correct?
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Yes.

And the two of you have Isabella, whose nickname is

Bel-l-a, tde' ve already determined t.hat , correct ?

A

ô

A

u

as Pl-aintif f 's Proposed Exhibit oh, [o, theyr re a1]-

admitted.

MS. FINE: The interrogatories, request for production,

are those admitted, .Iudge?

THE COURT: No, not yet.

MS. FINE: Okay.

BY MS. FINE:

O Directing your attention to what has been marked as

Plaintiff's Proposed Exhibit 2 it's in a notebook do you

recognize that document?

Yes.

I'm directing your attention to what's been marked

(Peruses document. )

Do you recognize

Yes. No, I

that document?

A

O

A

O

^

ô

A

I it' s the interrogatory.

All right.

Inter

That/s fine. So you recognize

interrogatories.
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them as something that came to you in the mail-;

is that right?

A This is one of the things I received.

O Okay. And you

MS . FINE: And so I woul-d move to admit.

THE COURT: AdMittcd.

(PLAINTIFF'S BXHIB]T 2 ADMITTED. )

BY MS. FINE:

O You never served upon me or prepared answers to

{)

these interrogatories; is

Speclfically? I

In that document

that correct, specifically?

t.hought I did. I I --

that you provided?

A

C)

A

interrogatories.

I submitted I submitted answers to

O Is that a part of that document that you took up

there with you?

A No, t.his is actual-Iy just the copies probably of the

same thing that I have uP here.

O Do you have a copy of what you provided to me?

A I do at my desk. I just brought uP

O Okay. So you actually think that you provided

answers to interrogatories to me?

A And on I bel-ieve it vias July 24th it was brought

to my attention, too, that I hadn't
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Okay.

when I when I thought I did. So I did as an

effort as much as possible to answer what I can.

a Okay. And directing your attention to what's been

marked as Pl-aint j-f f 's Proposed Exhibit 3, do you recognize

that document as being a copy of another document you received

in the mail at the same time as the interrogatories?

(BRIBF PAUSE. )

A Yes, I -- and the Yes, I remember I do

remember seeing t.his.

O Okay. And so are the documents in that pile that

you have in your hand, are they in response to this request

for production, even though they're not

A This

O specific?

A this this pile thatf s 1n my hand is an exact

copy of what is up here.

O I understand that.

Let me do this again. In that response in that

a)

request for

document and

question did

attaching?

AI

production of documents, did you take that

did you retype it and then and for each

you respond with what documents you were

Yes or no?

did at the end, July 24Lh, I did what I couJ-d,
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from when I real-ized I did not answer properl-y.

O And youf re not sure whether or not I received that'

correct ?

A

al

I sent it f sent it in the mail-.

Okay. So you remember the evidentiary hearing that
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I¡/aS COn

THE COURT: 3 is admitted bY the way.

(PLA]NTIFF'S EXHIBIT 3 ADMITTED. )

MS. FINE: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MS. FINE:

O Do you remember the evidentiary hearing that was

conducted before Judge Nathan fast year, right?

A In May MaY?

O The one that h/as held last October?

A The yes.

O We had an evidentiary hearing, you testified

A October 8.

O Maria testified

A October 8.

O What?

A October Bth.

O Yeah. Do you remember the various obligations the

Judge imposed upon you in her order foll-owing the l-ast year's

evidentiary hearing?24
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orders that she made

A I remember spithic I rememloer specific stat.ements

she made directJ-y Lo me in the courtroom.

O Okay. And do you remember getting a copy of the

order ?

A fn December I received a copy.

O Okay. And did you read it?

A

I

()

A

a

Uft, from --

Yes or no.

(No audibl-e response. )

Do you remember the obligations, do you remember her

In in December I read f read it.

Okay. And in December you then real-ized that you

were that Bel-fa had been and you were aware of the fact

that Bel-la had been receiving tutoring through Kumon, right?

A I-_

O You were aware that Bella has been and was receiving

tutoring through Kumon, yes?

A Yes.

O And isn't 1t true that Judge Nathan ordered you to

pay for Befla's tutoring with Kumon for the month of November,

A (No audibl-e response. )

O Yes or no?
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A f received the order for the payment in December to

pay for

O T understand.

A

ô

A

ô

A

O

A

O

I I

November. I do

But you heard her

say it in October?

She did not say it out l-oud in October. She

Okay.

The payment was not spoken at that time.

Okay. So, but in December then of 20L3 you were
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l_n

October she tol-d me to make sure, Mr. Lewis, that you do not

mj-ss taking f sabel-Ia to Kumon' s.

then aware that you vrere supposed to be paying for November,

right ?

A When

O Yes or no?

A Yes.

O Okay. Dld you Pay it?

A In February.

O You did not pay Kumon's. Do you have proof that you

paid Kumon?

A I -- I do not disagree that Kumon's never received

the payments directly. I distributed them to the Family24
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Support Dlvision. And, as f said in the previous case of the

evidentiary hearing in May in May for this hearing, that it

was upon the Judgef s ruJ-ing that she coul-d

O Mr. Lewis, you're speaking in hyperboJ-e. Let me see

if I can sort of narrow the issues for you.

The money you are paying to the Family Support

Divlsion is ninety-one dol-l-ars for your chiÌd support,

correct ?

AI I

O Yes or no?

À Vaq

O And fifty dol-lars a month for your health insurance,

yes or no?

A Yes.

a And one hundred doll-ars a month for your arrearages;

isn't that correct?

.t1

tl

Directly taken out of my check.

And that equals two hundred and twenty doJ-J-ars and

fifty cents or two hundred and twenty-one dol-l-ars a month

For every month.

isn't that right?

And that's what you're paying Family Support, isn't

A That's what is taken out of my check every month
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O But you are not paylng a penny to Kumon?

A I paid monies in bul-k to the FamiJ-y Support

Division.

supposed to pay since October of 2013

O No, you brought current the arrears that you were

hundred dol-Iars.

through February of

You didn't make any20L4, yoü paid five

payments in October, you didn't

you didn't make any Payments in

in January, and in FebruarY she

that correct?

A That is not correct.

make any payments in November,

December, you made no PaYments

got her first payments; is

O Look at the paip look at Exhibit 4

T am going

You provided that to me

(indiscernible) 74. The thing 1s

Look at my Exhibit 4. You provided that to me, did

A

U

.ô.

\J

you not?

Iittle

A (Reading to self. )

O Vlould you look at mY Exhibit 4?

THE COURT : Okay . Ms . Fine, J-et' s j ust s low down a

MS . FINE: Sorry.

BY MS. FINE

O Did you provide Bxhibit 4 to me?
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A Excuse me?

O Did you provide Exhibit 4 to me?

A f went and got this from -- Y€s, I provided it to

you.

O So look at October 15th , 2013, and tell- me what you

paid on October 15th, 2013.

A There is no October 15th.

a What 1s there a payment for in October?

A fn October the current

O The seventh, right? October 7th you paid fifteen

doll-ars and eighty-five cents?

A It's what what it's what was currentfy being

taken out of my check as as the order.

o And you see that nothing was taken out from october

7th, 20L3 to February 26Lh, 20L4; isnft

A WeIl, I

O that right?

A I took the I was concerned that nothing was

being taken out of my checks.

a And?

A I went into there on my o\^¡n account. And when I

talked to them on the twenty-sixth, they said that Maria had

just barely been into the office to put in the neh/ order. So

I paid them monies that day.
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O Okay. Let me read this to you. This is the order,

Judqe's order, dated l-et' s see .

MS. FINE: What's the date of your order' Judge?

The date of your order is December 21th, 2013.

BY MS. F]NE:

O But the minutes were rendered on October 28th, 2013,

which you received. And in that it said, the Judged stated,

the defendant shall pay plaintiff the full- two hundred and

forty-one doll-ars in

November, 2013, and

assignment in pIace.

assì-gnment in pIace.

pay Maria regardJ-ess

assignment in place.

October by October 31st, 2073, commencing

continuing until there is a wage

Continuing untiJ- there is a \,vage

So you v'/ere oblì-gated by this order to

of whether or not there was a waqe

Did you not read this?

A

O

Where where are you on?

Page ten of the Findings and Fact. Look at Exhibit
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13, my Exhibit 1 to Exhibit 13. It's the underJ-ying motion.

A This is what was fil-ed on 3/I9?

O Vlhat ?

A This is what was fil-ed on 3/I9, is what I'm looking

at? I'm sorry.

O It was fil-ed yes¡ March 19th I fil-ed the motion

to modify custody. If you wì-l-l go to the attachment, which is

Exhibit I, is the Findings of Facts, Concl-usions of Law and24
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order from This Court. And then you go to page ten in the

first paragraph second paragraph, I apologize.

A

\J

A

lJ

A

ô

A

fn a nutshel-l-?

Page ten of efeven it says

Oh, f've got

Page ten

six of fifteen.

Just go to Exhiblt 1 please.

I think I found it.
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It is further ordered that defendant shal-l pay?

O Yes, page ten, el-even? OkaY.

It is further ordered that defendant shall- pay

plaintiff the ful-l- two hundred and forty-one dol-l-ars in

October by October 31st, 2013, commencing November of 20L3 and

continuing until there is a wage assignment. And continuing

until- there's a \^/age assignment in place, Yoü would pay to

Maria one hundred and twenty dolJ-ars and fifty cents on the

fifth day of the month and one hundred and twenty dollars and

fifty cents on the twentieth day of the month. A failure by

you, a faifure by defendant to make any one payment is a

contempt of court and plaintiff may submit an order to show

cause with the supporting affidavit/declaratlon detailing the

missed payments to obtain an evidentiary hearing regarding

contempt.24
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We did that, did we not?

AI

¡\

O

A

Itm -- f'm

O Do you not understand this paragraph?

I understand the paragraph.

Do you not see it?

f saw
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the paragraph. I saw all-

what you're saying is

like I'm Irm

not saying that j-s wrong , I'm saying

that when I received this I was already in the \^i rong.

a Got it.

A Regardless of what had haPPened.

O You weren't 1n the v/rong, Sir. You were in court on

October 8th, were you not?

A Yes, when no financials \^/ere had nothing had

been ordered on that day

O And The Court

A f inancial-J-y.

a The Court took the matter under advisement,

correct ?

A Iput

MS. FINE: I would ask The Court to l-ook at your registry

of actions and tel-l- me whether or not we came back on October

21lh for a decision or whether or not you issued a minute

order, Judge.

He had counsel-. He had Patricia Marr.24
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I bel-ieve you took it under advisement and then you

i s sued

THE COURT: I made a minute order on October 14th

(j-ndiscernible) findings and order after evidentiary hearing.

MS. FINE: Our Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law are

a mirror image of that finding or you never woul-d have sígned

or it never woufd have been signed by This Court.

THE COURT: Right.

MS. FINE: So you knew about this in October and you

THE I{ITNESS: I

MS. FINE: chose to iqnore it.

THE W]TNESS: ûo¡ I did not know about it in October.

I do not

MS . FINE: Ilüel-I, Ms . Marr knew.

THE W]TNESS: T'm not bl-a Ifm not blaming my I

am Itm I did not know about this in October

MS. FINE: Okay

Your Honor, I'm not going to beat a dead horse. It

is what it is. The facts are

THE VüITNESS: If Ms . Marr was here with me we woul-d have

MS. FINE: Let me go back to

THE VÍITNESS: I woul-d have an attorney.
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BY MS. FINE:

O So we've dealt with the fact that Judge Nathan

ordered you to pay for Bel-l-a's tutoring with Kumon. You did

not pay it independently; is that correct?

A I did not pay it indePendentJ-Y.

O And the order speaks for itself what you were

obligated to pay?

A (No audibl-e resPonse. )

a Monthly fee for Bel-la's tutoring is two hundred

dol-l-ars a month; is that correct?

A That is what is f see as the

O Is that a yes

A the receiPts --

O orano?

A Yes, T believe theY are.

O Thank you.

And did you make any effort to pay any of that to

Maria ?

A I did not make an effort to pay it directly to

Maria.

a Okay. And you told Maria that you were not going to

take her for the summer because it was too far to travel; is

that correct?

A Yeah, that is correct.
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O And t.hat l^/as your unil-ateral decisionr You didn't

get an agreement from Maria; isn't. that correct?

A That is correct. I di-d not wait be

O And the order

due to the

says that you are not all-owed to make unil-ateral-

decisions, does it?

A Unless that unl-ess the chil-d was testing above

grade average.

O And you haven't provided any documentatj-on to

support that?

A

O

A It was

O Yes or no?

AI I just provided one.

O And it wasn't admitted.

THE COURT: Al-l- right. Where is that exhibit? Let's

show him that exhibit now so I can admi-t it and take a l-ook at

it.

What is that, Defendant's A?

THE CLERK: Yes, Your Honor

THE COURT: It's Defendant's A. Do you recognize that,

Mr. Lewis?

THE VüITNESS: Yes, I do

THE COURT: What 1s it?
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THE WITNESS: This is the Common Core math grade. It's

it's the st.andardized schol-astic testing that they take

twj-ce a year, once in the beginning and once in the end. They

do one for math, they do one for English.

THE COURT: Vühi-ch one is that for?

THE WITNESS: This is for math.

THE COURT: And you don't know

THE WITNESS: This

THE COURT: -- where the one for English is?

THE IIùITNESS: I -- I can I know I have it. I have

I have multiple of these. They send as you seef it says

dad up on the top corner. One is issued to me and one is

issued to Maria every time.

THE COURT: And what is your understanding of the

interpretation of the resul-ts you have in your hand?

THE WITNESS: The understanding of the resufts that I

have in my hand, if you l-ook well-, You don't you canf t

or do you have one (indicating) ?

THE COURT: No, I don't have one.

THE WITNESS: Um...

THE COURT: Well-, first of all, I'm going to admit j-t.

MS. FINE: Fine.

THE COURT: A is admitted.

(DEFENDANT'S EXH]BTT A ADMITTED. )
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THE WITNESS: If you see the test bars, the student j-s

the triangte, the school- is the square, and the district is

the diamond. The district fal-l-s wel-l- bel-ow both my daughter

and the school-, and Isabel-Ia's above and this j-s in the

third test towards the end of the school year where she's

testing above the schoof's average, which is above the school

district's average for her grade J-evel.

THE COURT: AIf right. Thank You.

Mr. Hoover' can I get that from him, please?

(MARSHAL RETR]EVES EXHIB]T FROM WITNESS AND DEL]VERS TO

BENCH. )

A1I right, Ms. Fine' your next question.

MS. FINE: I would kind of l-ike to look at it, Judge, so

that I can

THE COURT: Oh, T thought we gave you a copy.

MS. FINE: Well, I have a copy stuck in here, but f don't

have I would have to find it again. Can I if The Court

made copies of it?

THE COURT: I thought we did.

THE WITNESS: I thought You did, too.

THE COURT: Didn't we make three two copies?

THE MARSHAL: (Indiscernible. )

THE COURT: No?

THE MARSHAL: (Indiscernible. )

D-IO-42'1054-D LEWIS 01 /29/14 TRANSCRIPT

EIGHTH.JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT - EAMILY D]VISION - TRANSCRIPT VIDEO SERVICES

601 N. Pecos Road' Las Vegasf Nevada 89101 (1021 455-4917

24

151



I

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

1l

l2

13

14

l5

16

t7

18

t9

20

2l

22

23

THE COURT: Al-l- right. Let me just

MS. FfNE: Your Honor, I can find it. I got it. f'm

sure it's right here. funazinq.

THE MARSHAL: (Indiscernible. )

THE WITNBSS: Thank You, Sir.

MS. FTNE: Oh, it's right here.

THE MARSHAL: (Indiscernibl-e), Counsel-?

MS. FINE: No, You can't.

THE MARSHAL: (Indiscernible. )

MS. FINE: Just kidding.

(MS. FINE AND PLATNTTFF CONFER.)

Vüel-l-, I don't understand how to read it.

THE WITNESS: f can exPlain it.

MS. FINE: I think that Judge Nathan knows how to read it.

better than anybodY.

THB WITNESS: Correct.

BY MS. FTNE:

O But when was that?

A March 16th.

O Okay. So j-t's admitted.

So you admitted acknowl-edged that, in your

email-s, that you did not take Bell-a to her tutoring class

although ordered by The Court to do so, correct?

A On the speciflc day.
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A

I

O Yeah, May 5th; isn't that right?

That is correct

And j-sn't it true that instead you went rol-l-er-
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skating with Bel-Ia for a daddy/daughter rol-l-er-skating event?

A There was one event a year for dads and daughters.

It fel1 on that day. Vüe had one day's it was that day's

notice because

O It was from six to nj-ne, correct?

A It was from six o'clock to nine o'cfock.

O You couldn't take her at two thirty, you couldn't

take her three, yoü just couldn't take her that day; isn't

that right?

A This is right after the order from -- from The

Court ?

a The order f rom The Court \^¡as in December.

To to modify my my time with my daughter. My

it was the flrst it was the very first time that I was

going to pick up my daughter after the temporary modification.

It was the it was the first time f saw may daughter after

the temporary modification of the of custody.

O And you couldn't?

A I picked her up to take her home to change her, to

go that's that's al-l- I did, and I I informed the

plaintiff.

A
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OSo and then again

all- I did was pick her up, brought her

BY MS. F]NE

THE COURT: ( Indiscernible. )

additionally, the next time

On the nineteenth.

you said it was just too far for you to drive?

Yeah, she was out of school. She's the school-

there h/as no school- that day. It vúas a Cl-ark County ordered

teacher whatever, teacher

O So she was having fun with you and, therefore' no

tutoring, right?

O

A

al

A

A I just

back to my house. It was her day off. I do not have my

daughter normaJ-ly on

O ft's not my daughter, it's our daughter.

our daughter, I normal-J-y don't have our daughter

on a day off.

O So you and Maria did not agree to discontj-nue the

tutoring, you unifateraJ-1y chose to stop it, right?

A I did not unilaterally choose to stop it until after

the The Court which had ordered me to take her after school

O Where does it say

the testing

A
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v and where did it say that the school, that

summer, there's no tutoring?

A It al-so said about the testing.

THE COURT: No, you're no. You stopped t.aking her

because it was too far to drive; is that right?

THE WITNESS: (No audibl-e response. )

THE COURT: fsn't that correct?

THE WITNESS: (No audible response. )

THE COURT: Once school- is out of session

THE WITNESS: Once the school- was out

THE COURT: -- you just didn't

THE WITNESS: that sesslon.

THE COURT: want to drive that

THE VIITNESS: Wel-l-, it was a

THE COURT: do that drive?

THE WITNESS: it's a it is a very long

Honor. We/re talking a forty-mi-Ie

BY MS. F]NE:

drive, Your

O Excuse me. You l-ive in 89104; is that right?

A I l-ive at 4650 ldaho Avenue' 890

a Vühich is where?

A

l^)

A

89104. I l-ive on the east side of Las Vegas.

And where is that?

Right down the street.
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O Where?

On Pec it's on Charleston and Lamb.

Okay. And Charl-eston and Lamb and you have to go

to Green VaIJ-ey?

A I have to past Green Val-Iey. It's in

O It/ s on Eastern.

A

É\

O

A

O

A

tl

THE PLAINTIFF: Horizon Ridge.

THE VùITNESS: And Horizon Ridge. Eastern and Horizon

Ridge. I actually did

MS. FINE: The Court can take judicial notice or whatever

it wants to, but it's not forty mil-es.

THE WITNESS: It is thirty-six mil-es.

BY MS. FINE

O So, between agaJ-n, I don't want to beat a dead

horse, but between October, November and December and January'

you had no monies taken out of your paycheck and you paid no

monies to Maria; is that right?

And

And it's not forty mil-es.

Eastern and what?

(No audj-ble response. )

Yes or no?

Between

fn October, 201-3 and January of 2073 (sic), you had
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no monies taken out of your paycheck; is that correct?

A f 'm -- actualJ-y, You know what? I' l-l- be honest' I

did not know j-f monies were being taken out of my checks. I

they actual-Iy stopped sendíng us paper pay stubs, and they

went to al-t an el-ectronic system, ADP -- ADP el-ectronic pay

stubs. And I did not have access to my pay stubs to see 1f

they were taking monies out. From the from the l-ooks of

how much f was getting in my coming back to me T thought

monies were being taken out.

a But that Exhiblt 4 accurateJ-y depi-cts the payments

you've made

A Yes.

O to Maria from October from --

A Yes.

O from October, 20L3 through

A Yes.

a June 2nd of 20L4?

A Yes.

O Okay. That document speaks for itsel-f .

A Yes.

a And you've had the same job since l-ast October,

right ?

A Yes.

O And you're employed with Marshal-l-'s?
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A
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Yeah, the MarshalI Retail- GrouP.

All right. And you don't work forty hours per week

still; is that correct?

A f was hired j-n as part-time associate, and I have

managed to work myself back up into the high twenty-eight to

thlrty hour itf s theyrre obligated to give me medj-cal-

insurance if I go over a crest of like thirty-two hours, and

they keep me right under that crest.

O You are a thirty-seven year old man; isn't that

rlght ?

A This is correct.

THE COURT: Do you know what, Ms. Fine?

MS. FINE: Yeah?

THE COURT: I already imputed income to him --

MS. EINE: Okay.

THE COURT: -- at the l-ast order, so we don't need to

(indiscernible) for this.

MS. FINE:

O So, but you haven't aPPIY okaY.

THE COURT: I made findings as to his income, I made

findings as to his commj-ssion. And if I end up granting the

request for change in custody, I/ 11 fall- back on those

flndings. They were just six months ago.

THE IlüITNESS : (Indiscernibl-e . )
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THE COURT: Tt's eight months ago.

BY MS. FINE:

O So if I were to ask you, since October of 2013

first of a1J-, you have not submitted a Financj-al- Discl-osure

Form?

THE COURT: That is my next question, right.

MS. FINE:

O You have not submltted your Financial Disclosure

Form, which is you're required to do by the law?

A I I bel- r did how I you know, I think T

tried to to print out my stubs and get them in yesterday,

and that is I take ful-l- knowledge that I did not try to get

I didn't receive your Financial Disclosure Report until

Juty 22nd.. It was mail-ed. I don't bel-j-eve I got it till the

twent.y-fourth, when I was with the IRS' to even respond.

O So since October of 201'3, You don't know, since

you've gone a computer thing, what your average monthly take-

home is; is that right? That's what you said.

A I said during those months I had no access --

O October, November

November

December

December

January?

¡\

a

¡1

a)
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and January.

You were just spending your money and

It's not

AS long as you didn't bounce anything you had

pJ-enty, right?

A I don't have pJ-enty. And, Dor I wasn't flaunting

anything.

O So you knew how much money had to come out, you knew

how much money was there. Did you check your bank statements?

A I -- once again, I don't have a bank account. I do

not have a statement.

a So where'd the money go for your paycheck?

A It goes straight to a debj-t, straight to a debit

card.

O And you can't check the debit card?

A f can check the f can/ t check how much was

deposited. And there's in there/ s a fee that goes along

for anytime I ever check anYthing.

O Oh, my gosh.

A I coul-d provide

O (Indiscernibl-e. )

A al-l- those documents if needed.

O Okay. So by living at home with your parents you

keep your expenses pretty low, right?

A

(2

A

ô
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second job just l-ike all- of üs, right?

A (No audible response. )

O How many jobs did Maria have when you I^¡eren't paying

her anything? She had three? You can't go get a side job?

You're not a stupid man, you're a smart man. Look at You,

wel-1-dressed, handsome

A

O

A

al

A

A

O

A

O

A

ô

A

a)

(No audible response. )

Do you

I

pay rent?

I have to keep them low. I don't make a lot

But you are a grown man and you could go find a

Thi s

Couldn't you

does not

even

l-s tnrs

go l-ook?

Vühat what is the question?

Can't you go get a side job and help support your

A I do help support my daughter.

daughter?

O Yeah. Okay. Is it

A Our daughter.
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O is it your testimony that you didn't have the

money to start paying ninety-one dol-l-ars per month current

child support commencing in October?

A I woul-d have if they

MS. FINE: I'm beating a dead horse here. I/l-l- stop,

Judge, I guess. He's going to keep saying he didn't know he

had to pay it. It's very cl-ear. If l-l- Iet the Judge Court

make its decision.

BY MS. FINE:

O When did you learn that Bell-a was recei-ving

counseling at Oasis Counseling?

A When I received an email from Maria.

O And did you contact Mr. VflheatleY?

A I tried.

O And dj-d he telf you that he coufdn't counsef with

you ?

A No, I did not tal-k to Mr. Wheatley. The numbers I

was provided were apparently not to his office. I feft

messages. I was a little frustrated. I bel-ieve there are

emails in the plethora of

O There were.

A of paperwork that we have upon us that

O All right. So you l-earned that there was counseling

going oûr you tried to make a phone cal-l-, You weren't abfe to
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reach him, but yet he does indicate that you testified I think

earlier, yoü asked questions earl-ier of Maria, if I recal-l-

A Excuse say that again. It m sorry. I I'm -- I

was

a You asked a question of Maria

A trying to fol-l-ow.

O j-sn't it true that f tried to work with Dr.

Vriheatley and to counsel- with hlm? Dídn't you ask her that and

then the Judge said that woul-d have been a confl-ict?

A That was but that was after that \^/as after the

October time that f'm talking about. This is in that was

in April of this year.

O It stitl- woul-d be a conflict, wouldn't it? You're

not going to

A No.

O counsel with the same person your daughter's

counsel-ing with.

A It I wasn't counsellng with him. I wanted him to

get I just wanted to get to know him. And then it was

ordered upon from The Court to make to ensure that she

continued to go. I asked my daughter if she had had been

going recently, she said no. I -- so I just made an

appointment, and he did not see me.

O Did you
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A

(2

A

a)

And he can

asked to be

he he can he can attest to

All right. Vùell-, I'Il- ask him.

Did you initiate contact with Oasis

al-1 this.

Center or

Bell-a's therapist after learning that she I/,/as in counseling or

how long after?

A I tried to contact him right away.

O But you never got through?

A f never got through.

O Did you

A

O

A

C)

^

a

A

ô

They changed

notify Maria?

Yes, I did.

And what did she say?

She said too bad.

Really? Okay

ft's in the email-s I bel-ieve.

You al-so know that Mr. Wheatley submitted a l-etter

fs it.

back in February, of this year, that's attached

to our March motion that was f1led with The Court saying that

he had tried on several- occasions to get you to come into

D-1"0-421054-D LEW]S O1 /29/14 TRÀNSCRIPT

EIGHTH JUDICIAL D]STRICT COURT - EAMILY DIVISION - TRANSCRIPT V]DEO SERVICES

601 N, Pecos Road, Las Vegas, Nevada 89101" (1021 455-4911

O

24

164



I

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

t2

13

t4

15

16

17

18

19

20

2I

22

23

24

therapy with Bel-Ia with no success.

A He couldn't contact me.

O Did you read that l-etter?

A He coul-dn't contact me without my real- teJ-ephone

number.

a So is Mr. VüheatJ-ey lying?

A That he coufdn't contact me?

O

A

a

Riqht.

Most

No, he said

J-1ke1y not

he said that he had tried on several occasions to

get you to come into therapy.

A How woul-d he con how would he get me to 90 into

therapy if he never contacted me?

O When did you finally

A If he never l-eft a message, if he never was abl-e to

speak to me. If he if there was no lines of communication

how would he speak to me?

a When did you finally communicate with Mr. Vüheatley

about Belfa's counseling?

A When I talked to him on APril 1st.

O This is now July.

Descri-be the communication between you and Mr.
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VüheatJ-ey.

A I liked Mr. Wheatley. I think he was a nj-ce a

nice guV, a nice doctor. We had a pleasant time. We we

tal-ked. And it was mainly just from reading the letter that

you asked for him to provide from the February l-etter, which T

I had no knowledge of how many times she was seeing the

doctor at that tj-me. I was not being kept in the loop. Maybe

I should have been super more proactive. But I have been j-n

court for a year-and-a-hal-f. I sometimes am tentative.

O Isn't it true that you ignored Bel-l-a's counseling

and had to be tol-d by Maria in June that it had ended?

A No . That that' s completel-y untrue . That

When did that

O And isn't it al-so true that when your daughter was

iII and you kept her home, instead of taking her to the

doctor, you went to see Mr. Vühortley (sic)?

A No.

O WheatleY.

A That's that's not true.

O Vlhen in the l-ast two years have you taken Bella to

the doctor?

A I just took her to the dentist on my own account.

That/s the only time. I without

O And she's seven?
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down the street

O Does Bell-a take baths when she's in your custody?

A No, she takes showers ever after being requested

from Maria

a At your house?

A

O

A

a

^

u

A

A

O

A

O

A

o

A

Excuse me?

And what was the dentist's name?

Dr. Park,

And where is he located?

I have the card

You took her. You don't remember where it is?

It I¡/as it's right near Maria's residence. ft's

At my house.

Vlhen she is in your custody does Bel-l-a take baths?

She takes showers.

In your custody?

Whil-e in my custody

Okay. And does she have eczema?

her skin when I'd seen the eczema.

I have never I really haven't l-iterally touched

Vlhen I picked up Isabell-a

she had Marie had ;ustafter her rash the very first time,

finished wíth the cream, the cream treatment. And she toÌd

flê¡ there there's an email specifically stating the times

that the cream should be applied. Then right before I was to
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pick her up, she sent an email saying I finished with the

treatment, don't worry about it, it's gotten better.

O Would you show me the email-, please?

Sure.

I'll- tell- you what

f mean, if that

we're coming back in a month or a week. Can

MS. FINB: Is it a week?

THB COURT: I don't know.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No, it's August 5th.

BY MS. FTNE:

O Vüill- you bring that email- for me, pÌease?

A

I

.6.

O

you please

A (No audibl-e response. )

What do you do to treat

never had an outburst? Her

She's never had --

skin isn't leathery?

an out shet s never

Oh, right.

it while she's in your care?

had an outburst

She's

A

A

A of of or outbreak of eczema. f have I

have listened to try and to put creams, lotions, the type of

l-otions that that the homeopathic, I beÌieve, from what

Maria's asked.
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O Did Maria give you a tube of the

A I bought my own actualJ-y, âs wel-l-.

O And what have you been told by any doctor to do

about it, use those creams?

A f haven't been tol-d by a doctor to do to do

anything.

THE COURT: Vùhy did you buy a homeopathic remedy if she

hasn't had an outbreak in Your care?

THB VIITNESS: Tt's because that it's the same kind that

she she had. It was just to have have some of that

cream just in case an outbreak woul-d have happened. I

THE COURT: But she gave you a container of it of what

she had, didn't she?

THE VÍITNESS: It. was the the littl-e thing of cocoa

THB PLAINTIFF: I gave you the cocoa, meanwhile, and then

we got the prescription. And I put one

THE VIITNESS: But I never

THE PLAINTIFF: rn your

THE I'IITNESS:

THE PLAINTIFF:

got a prescription.

(Indiscernibl-e) and you would send it

back and forth when I said that's yours. There's two tubes I

bought, you and one for me.

THE VüITNESS: I did not receive I I did receive

cream. I dld not receive a medication. The medication was
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applied by her and it was told to me that. it was done.

BY MS. FINE:

a Is there a reason whY, instead of going to the

doctors and working with her, that, You know

MS . FINB: The Court' s I ' l-l- pass the witness .

THB COURT: Is there anything el-se you want to tell The

Court about what's been put on the record today?

THB WITNESS: Me? Excuse me, Ma'am? Your Honor?

THE COURT: Is there anything el-se that you want to tell

Íìer The Court, about what's been put on the record today?

THE VüITNESS: Is that

THE COURT: Didn't okay. You didn't pay your child

support until you got the order, until there wage assignment,

right ?

THE WITNESS: No, I didn't make an effort. I did in

February

THE COURT: What does t.hat mean

THB VüITNBSS: I -- I --

THE COURT i -- I made an effort?

THE WITNESS: I wal-ked in

THE COURT: Did you make a check out and hand it to her?

THE WITNESS: No, I made a check out and I handed it to

Family Family Support Division off on F1amingo.

THE COURT: But you and what month did you do that?
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THE IrüITNESS: February 261h.

THE COURT: Okay. But between October and February you

didn't make any payments?

THE VüITNESS: ] Do, T did not. I really thought that

something would be puJ-led from my check, and I wanted to make

sure.

THE COURT: Al-l- right. And you didn't make any payments

to Kumon, right?

THE VùITNESS: Not to Kumon' s directJ-y, no.

THE COURT: Okay. And I haven't heard any expJ-anations

or denial-s that child missed ten days of school- while in your

care.

THE WITNBSS: That I woul-d denY.

THE COURT: You would denY it?

THE VüITNESS: Yes, because it was in her mother's care.

She like I -- l-ike in the l-ine of questioning that I kind

of asked to her is that whil-e she was sick she asked to stay

with her mother. Those woul-d be the excused absences shown on

the cafendar.

It's in 14. It probably woul-d be in 14. On 2/L0,

Monday, Tuesday, of, two, three, four, fi-ve, six, seven.

Seven of those days with two others. Those are not in my

physical care. Both of those occasions are with her mother.

And there are email-s backing backing those up that h/e have
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both provided. I I

THE COURT: Vlhat about the tardies llsted here?

THB WITNESS: Now I wil-Ì saY there's there are

occasions when, like I said prior, it is a distance. There

are some tj-mes that \^/e are tardY.

I drive eighteen mifes one I^¡ay' and we al-most had it

down to a science. I've taken her for two years to this

location. T have no problems taking my daughter. And just as

the pJ-aintiff said sometimes, and she l-ives two minutes away

from the school-, she's been tardy four times, twice, three

times. I I have the majority of the days, four where I

drop off, and some of them

THE COURT: DO

THE VüITNESS: the tardies are the teacher's fault,

because they don't get the tardy pass.

THE COURT: Do you know what that vacation was that's

l-isted under April 14th?

THE VüITNESS: Those are just the vacation days. WeIl-

Ifm sorry, April 14th. That's spring vacation.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE VIITNESS: Where she went to Cal-ifornia with her mom.

THE COURT: AIl right. Those were my onJ-y other

questions.

Anything else, Ms. Fine?
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MS. FINE: Is that I just want to go through this

thing.

!ÍARIA PREDOMO EUENTE (LEWIS)

testifles as foll-ows:

EXAIÚINATION

BY MS. FINE:

O So there are fifteen tardies for him. Right? On

your days? And there are two tardies for mom on her days. Is

that what this report says on fourteen?

THE COURT: Well, J-et me ask this question. Until v/e had

the hearing in October or excuse mef until- I¡/e had the

hearing in May, what was your timeshare? Vühen did you have

Bel-1a ?

MS. FINE: He had Monday, Tuesday, Vùednesday, and he

returned her Thursday morning to school-.

THE VüITNESS: I would have her Sunday/ every alternating

weeks I woul-d have her on a Sunday. I'd pick her up Sunday

night. , l'd drop her of f at school- Monday, Tuesday, VÍednesday,

and drop her off at school- on Thursday. And then the next

week I'd pick her up from school on a Monday.

THE COURT: Okay. So through Thursday mornings. So, al-l-

right. So we have one two

(SOMEONE SNEEZES. )

THE PLAINTTFF: Bless you.
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MS. FINB: Sorry.

Thank you.

THE COURT: (indiscernible) five, six, seven, eight,

nine, ten, eleven, tweJ-ve, thirteen, fourteen, fifteen,

sixteen.

I'm counting sixteen tardies.

THE WTTNESS: IN

THE COURT: SO

THE W]TNESS: in its entirety?

THE COURT your explanation for sixteen tardies is

what ?

THE WITNESS: Vùell, I make no explanations for every

single tardy. I I will say probably sixty percent of those

are legitimate two-minute late tardies. Two like nothing

excessive. We drive a long way. Sometimes if we hit -- \^ie

hj-t traffic on the fJ-ip around the 2I5. If we catch traffic

right, getting off it slows us down just a couple minutes. It

is very minimal. It is nothing that affects her ability to

function in school-.

Some days on VÍednesdays I -- I volunteer, so some

days you'lJ- see tardj-es and it's because I'm signing in and

I'm actualty typing into the computer and getting -- printing

out a sticker to volunteer. So there are sometimes that She's

tardy on like that as wel-l-.
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THE COURT: Al-l right.

All right. Those \^/ere my onJ-y questions, Ms. Fine.

MS. FINE: Okay. And nothing el-se that I can think of

right now. I mean, I'm just exhausted.

THE COURT: Al-l- right. Yeah.

We're going to wait to continue this matter to

When's the next court date, Ms. Boyle?

THE CLERK: August 5th at one thirtY.

THE COURT: August 5th at one thirty. And we'fl plck up

with Plaintiff's witnesses, and then Defendant wj-l-l- put on his

CASC.

MS. FINE: Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: Al-f right. Thank You, Mr. Lewis. You can go

back to your tabl-e.

THE WITNESS: Thank you, Your Honor.

fs this your copies?

THB MARSHAL: (Indiscernible) goes over here.

THE WITNESS: Yes, Sir.

THE COURT: AII right. Thank You.

THE PLAINTIFF: Thank You¡ Your Honor.

MS. FINE: Thank you.

(THE PROCEEDING ENDED AT 16:57:02.)

(MATTER CONTTNUED TO AUGUST 5, 2014.)
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